
1 
 

 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
September 21, 2015 

6:00 P.M. – Executive Session 
7:00 P.M. – Regular Meeting 

Council Chambers 
Town Hall 

85 Union Street 
 
Roll Call of Members 
 
Acknowledgement of Meeting Notice 
 
Executive Session: Consultations with legal counsel regarding MRRA versus Town of 
Brunswick [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E)]  
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Adjustments to Agenda 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a) Approval of the Minutes of September 8, 2015 
b) Selection of MMA Voting Delegation for Annual Meeting 
 
Public Comments 
 
Correspondence 
 
Committee Reports 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
a) Financial Update   
b) Recognition of Terry Goan being named the Best Police Officer in Mid-Coast Maine 
c) Report on the names for trails on the Kate Furbish Preserve 
d) Review of FOAA responsibilities 
e) Marine Resources update 
f) Report on Tobacco Free Zones to now include vaping products (smokeless cigarettes)  
 
  



2 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
94. The Town Council will hear public comments on the following Automobile 

Graveyard and Junkyard application, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 
 
Shawn Letourneau 
D/B/A: Brunswick Auto Recycling, LLC    Shawn Letourneau 
117 Bath Road 

HEARING/ACTION 
 
95. The Town Council will hear public comments for “An Ordinance Authorizing the 

Replacement and Upgrade of the Boiler and Domestic Hot Water System at 
Brunswick High School, With Total Project Costs Not to Exceed $575,000 (plus any 
other costs authorized hereunder), and Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and 
Notes in an Amount not to Exceed $575,000 (plus cost of issuance), plus any 
Additional Appropriation Authorized Hereunder,” and will take any appropriate 
action.  (Manager) 

HEARING/ACTION 
 

96. The Town Council will hear public comments for “An Ordinance Authorizing the 
Funding and Completion of the Reappraisal and Revaluation of All Taxable Real 
Property and All Tax-exempt Real Property Located Within the Town of Brunswick 
With Total Project Costs Not to Exceed $400,000 (plus any other costs authorized 
hereunder), and Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an Amount not 
to Exceed $400,000 (plus cost of issuance), plus any Additional Appropriation 
Authorized Hereunder,” and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 

HEARING/ACTION 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
No new business items. 

 
 

INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 
COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT  

THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 (TDD 725-5521) 
 
  



3 
 

Brunswick Town Council 
Agenda  

September 21, 2015 
Council Notes and Suggested Motions 

 
Executive Session: Consultations with legal counsel regarding MRRA versus Town of 
Brunswick [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E)]  
 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to go into Executive Session for a consultation with legal counsel regarding MRRA 
versus Town of Brunswick per 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E). 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a) Approval of the Minutes of September 8, 2015:  A copy of the minutes is included in 

your packet. 
b) Selection of MMA Voting Delegation for Annual Meeting:  This item allows the Council 

to designate a delegate and an alternate to represent Brunswick at the MMA Annual 
Business Meeting, being held on Wednesday, October 7, 2015, at 1:30 p.m. at the 
Augusta Civic Center.  The MMA Bylaws entitle each member community to one voting 
representative. The Council will need to nominate a voting delegate and an alternate.  
Chair Brayman as volunteered to represent Brunswick, with Manager Eldridge as the 
alternate.  Copies of information on this item are included in your packet.  

 
The Council has the option to remove any item from the Consent Agenda to be considered 
separately. 
 

Suggested Motion:  
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
Councilors with information on the Committees they are involved with will share 
information with the Council and public. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
a) Financial Update:  Manager Eldridge will update the Council on the Town’s financial 

status at this time in the current fiscal year.  In addition, he will provide a recap of the 
preliminary numbers for FY 2014-15. Copies of monthly financial reports are included in 
your packet.  

b) Recognition of Terry Goan being named the Best Police Officer in Mid-Coast Maine:  
This item recognizes Officer Goan for being selected for this honor that is part of the 
Times Record’s Best of the Midcoast awards. A copy of the Times Record article is 
included in your packet.   

  



4 
 

 
c) Report on the names for trails on the Kate Furbish Preserve:  On July 20th, the Council 

heard a report from Bridger Tomlin, the Bowdoin Fellow, about the process underway at 
that time to name the trails.  This trail naming project has been conducted with the intent 
to name various segments after the people and places that were a part of the Merriconeag 
Community, where the Preserve is now, from the 1700s until the time of the Brunswick 
Naval Air Station expansion in 1953.  The project included the work of various people, 
including a committee, a group of local experts, public input, and Recreation 
Commission’s approval.  Bridger will make a presentation on this report.  Copies of a 
memo and a map of the trails are included in your packet. 

d) Review of FOAA responsibilities: This item is in response to a recent article appearing in 
the Bangor Daily News and then in the Times Record that raised questions about elected 
officials participating in discussions on the Brunswick Community United Facebook 
Page.  It appears there may be some confusion so to clarify, the Facebook page is not 
sponsored, maintained, or monitored by the Town.  

e) Marine Resources update:  On Monday, Manager Eldridge met with Dan Devereaux and 
Mark Latti to get acquainted with the history of Brunswick’s efforts to propagate and 
protect its soft shell clam resource and the challenges the Town’s Marine Resources 
Committee has encountered in its efforts.  On Tuesday, Mr. Eldridge met with three of 
four members of Brunswick’s legislative delegation to discuss potential administrative 
and legislative efforts to protect the shellfish resource.  On Thursday, the Manager will be 
meeting with Maine’s Marine Resources Commissioner Patrick Keliher to discuss the 
issues from the Department’s perspective.  Mr. Eldridge hopes to have more to report to 
the Town Council at its September 21st meeting. 

f) Report on Tobacco Free Zones to now include vaping products (smokeless cigarettes):   
This item is an opportunity for representatives from the Recreation Commission and 
Access Health to discuss the change the Commission made to their 2002 Resolution 
banning the use of tobacco products at town parks and recreation facilities.  The new 
change adopted on June 17th will also include vaping products.  New signs donated by 
Access Health will be installed at the town locations.  Copies of a memo from Tom 
Farrell and the adopted resolution are included in your packet. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
94. This item is the public hearing on the renewal of an Automobile Graveyard and 

Junkyard licenses for Brunswick Auto Recycling, LLC located on 117 Bath Road.  
This license is required by both the Town’s ordinance and state law.  The facility has 
passed an inspection, conducted by Officer Devereaux, and his report is included for 
your review.  There have been no special conditions set for this license in the past.  
Copies of the public hearing notice, application, and inspection report are included in 
your packet. 
 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to approve the application for an Automobile Graveyard and Junkyard 
licenses for Brunswick Auto Recycling, LLC., located at 117 Bath Road. 

 



5 
 

95. This item is the required public hearing for this proposed ordinance.  As discussed at 
your last meeting, the Town’s 2016‐20 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 
recommends funding the replacement of boilers and related equipment at Brunswick 
High School. Originally the replacement was scheduled to take place in the 2016‐17 
fiscal year, but the School Department is now recommending that this project be 
moved to the current fiscal year.  The estimated cost of the project is $575,000.  This 
project is replacing the High School track reconstruction, which had been scheduled 
for this year.  Copies of a memo from Manager Eldridge, relative pages from the CIP, 
a proposed bond ordinance, and a projected amortization schedule for the bonds are 
included in your packet.   

 
PLEASE NOTE: On Wednesday, Superintendent Perzanoski notified the Town 
Manager that the School Department would like to postpone the scheduled public 
hearing.  The hearing has been advertised, so the Council will have to vote not to go 
forward and to advertise another hearing for a later date.  Mr. Perzanoski is expected, 
by Monday, to let the Council know when the Department would like to hold a 
rescheduled hearing.   
 
Suggested motions:  
1) Motion to cancel the scheduled public hearing. 
2) If date provided by School Department: Motion to set a public hearing for _____ 

for “An Ordinance Authorizing the Replacement and Upgrade of the Boiler and 
Domestic Hot Water System at Brunswick High School, With Total Project Costs 
Not to Exceed $575,000 (plus any other costs authorized hereunder), and Further 
Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an Amount not to Exceed $575,000 
(plus cost of issuance), plus any Additional Appropriation Authorized 
Hereunder.” 

 
96. This item is the required public hearing for this proposed ordinance.  As discussed at 

your last meeting and at the time of its adoption, the 2016‐20 CIP recommends 
funding a complete revaluation of all taxable property at an estimated cost of 
$400,000, and funding it through bonds.  Assessor Cathy Jamison will be making a 
presentation on this project.  Copies of a memo from Manager Eldridge, relative 
pages from the CIP, a proposed bond ordinance, a projected amortization schedule for 
the bonds, and a memo from the Assessor are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion:  
Motion to adopt “An Ordinance Authorizing the Funding and Completion of the 
Reappraisal and Revaluation of All Taxable Real Property and All Tax-exempt Real 
Property Located Within the Town of Brunswick With Total Project Costs Not to 
Exceed $400,000 (plus any other costs authorized hereunder), and Further 
Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an Amount not to Exceed $400,000 (plus 
cost of issuance), plus any Additional Appropriation Authorized Hereunder.”  

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 



6 
 

 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
September 8, 2015 

7:00 P.M. 
Council Chambers 

Town Hall 
85 Union Street 

 
Councilors Present: W. David Watson, Stephen S. Walker, Suzan Wilson, John M. Perreault, 

Daniel E. Harris, Jane F. Millett, Sarah E. Brayman, and Katherine E. 
Wilson 

 
Councilors Absent: John Richardson, Jr. 
 
Town Staff Present: John S. Eldridge, III, Town Manager; Elin M. Gould, Deputy Town 

Clerk; Steve Langsdorf, Town Attorney; Cathy Jamison, Assessor; Dan 
Devereaux, Marine Resources Officer/Harbor Master; Julie Henze, 
Finance Director; Linda Smith, Business Development Manager; Jessica 
Factor, Human Resources Manager; Ken Brillant, Fire Chief; Jeff 
Emerson, Deputy Fire Chief; Don Koslosky, Deputy Fire Chief; Lynn 
Doucette, Police Officer; and TV video crew 

 
Chair Brayman called the meeting to order, asked the Clerk for roll call, acknowledged that the 
meeting was properly noticed, and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Adjustments to Agenda:  none 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: (This item was discussed at 7:02 p.m.) 
a) Approval of the minutes of August 3, 2015 
b) Abatement of personal property taxes that were assessed in error 
c) Approval of an Utility Location Permit and Utility Easement for Maine Natural Gas on 

a section of Town Hall Place and its parking lot 
d) Permission to apply for, and if received, to expend, a MMA Safety Grant for two new 

office chairs 
e) Permission to apply for, and if received, to expend, a MMA Safety Grant for fire safety 

clothing  
f) Permission to apply for, and if received, to expend, the Emergency Management 

Planning Grant for 2015 
 

Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to approve the consent agenda.  
The motion carried with eight (8) yeas.   
 
(A copy of a memo from the Assessor regarding CA-b, a memo from the Public Works Director, 
an easement, application, and map regarding CA-c, a memo from the Human Resources 
Manager regarding CA-d, a memo from Deputy Fire Chief Don Koslosky regarding CA-e, and 
a memo from the Fire Chief regarding CA-f, will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
 
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
September 8, 2015 
Page 2 
 
Public Comments (This item was discussed at 7:03 p.m.) 
 
Sarah Brown, Curtis Memorial Library, invited the Council and the public to the second annual 
How-To Festival and Block Party on Saturday, September 12, 2015, from 10-3.  A portion of 
Middle Street will be closed during that time. 
 
Correspondence (This item was discussed at 7:06 p.m.) 

• Letter from the School Superintendent regarding repair project for Coffin Elementary 
and Brunswick Junior High School 

 
Chair Brayman made comments reflecting the Council’s support of quality education in 
Brunswick and addressing facilities issues. 

 
• Memo regarding a special permit issued by the Planning Board for the Grace Reformed 

Baptist Church 
 
Manager Eldridge explained this item. 
 
Councilor Millett said she received a letter regarding speeding on Federal Street and the loss of 
parking on that street. 
 
Councilor Perreault said he received comments about speeding on Hacker Road and about the 
treatment of waste cans by Pine Tree Waste. 
 
Chair Brayman, on behalf of Brunswick Public Art, announced the placement of two new pieces 
of public art, at the Dog Park and at Coffin School. 
 
Chair Brayman received correspondence from a local realtor who remarked about the slow, 
steady improvement in the real estate market. 
 
Councilor Watson congratulated the Brunswick Dragons football team for winning the first 
game of the season. 
 
Councilor Millett announced there will be an Arts are Elementary fundraiser on September 25th. 
 
(A copy of the letter from the School Superintendent and one from the Director of Planning and 
Development will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Committee Reports (This item was discussed at 7:15 p.m.) 
 
Councilor Perreault said the Social Services Committee has a final policy draft ready to go to 
the full Council. 
 
Councilor Wilson announced the Teen Center 10th anniversary year kick- off Open House event 
on September 17th. 
 

 
 



Town Council Minutes 
September 8, 2015 
Page 3 
 
Councilor Walker gave a report on the Recycling and Sustainability Committee meeting about 
Solarize Brunswick.  Councilor Wilson asked a question, to which Linda Smith, Business 
Development Manager, responded. 
 
Councilor Watson and Councilor Millett commented on the number of people associated with 
the recent air show who were from Brunswick. 
 
Chair Brayman appointed Councilor Millett to the Trust Fund Advisory Committee. 
 
Chair Brayman reported on the Finance Committee meeting. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
a) Recognition of donation of a granite bench in honor of Numa and Jean McDuff (This 

item was discussed at 7:27 p.m.) 
 

Manager Eldridge thanked the family for the donation and said the bench will be located at the 
Mill Street canoe portage. 

 
(A copy of a memo from the Parks and Facilities Manager/Town Arborist will be attached to the 
official minutes.) 
 
b) Recognition of Brunswick’s designation of a Bicycle Friendly Community by the 

League of American Bicyclists (This item was discussed at 7:28 p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge made this announcement. 
 
(A copy of an article from the Portland Press Herald will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
c) Update on Pine Street Gate access to Brunswick Landing (This item was discussed at 

7:32 p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge gave this update. 
 
Councilor K. Wilson commented on the importance of this access for children going to the 
Recreation Center. 
 
d) Update on Downtown Brunswick being considered for a Commercial Historic District 

nomination by the Maine Historic Preservation Commission (This item was discussed at           
p.m.) 

 
Claudia Knox extended an invitation to an informational meeting at Curtis Memorial Library 
on September 15th at 4:00 p.m. 
 
Councilor Perreault, Councilor Millett, and Chair Brayman asked questions, to which Claudia 
Knox, and Debora King of the Brunswick Downtown Association, responded. 
 

 
 



Town Council Minutes 
September 8, 2015 
Page 4 
 
(A copy of a letter from the Brunswick Downtown Association will be attached to the official 
minutes.) 
 
e) Update on Zoning Rewrite Process (This item was discussed at 7:45 p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge gave this update. 
 
Councilor Walker asked a question, to which Manager Eldridge responded. 
 
(A copy of a memo from the Chair of ZORC will be attached to the official minutes.) 

 
f) Report on the repeal of Thomas Point Closure (This item was discussed at 7:47 p.m.) 
 
Marine Resourses Officer/Harbor Master Dan Devereaux made this report. 
 
Councilor Harris, Councilor Millett, and Councilor Walker asked questions and made 
comments, to which Dan Devereaux responded. 
 
Steve Langsdorf, Town Attorney, offered a suggestion. 
 
Councilor Perreault and Councilor S. Wilson made comments on the issue. 
 
Mark Latti, Marine Resource Committee Chair, spoke on the issue. 
 
Councilor K. Wilson and Councilor Millett asked questions, to which Mark Latti responded. 
 
Councilor Watson commented on the issue. 
 
Darcy Couture, Marine scientist, talked about the issue. 
 
(A copy of a letter from the Marine Resource Officer/Harbor Master will be attached to the 
official minutes.) 

 
g) Update on 3 Lincoln Street (This item was discussed at 8:19 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge gave this update. 
 
h) Notice of property tax bills being mailed (This item was discussed at 8:20 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge said the tax rate will be $28.36 and bills will go out this week. 
 
(A copy of a memo from the Assessor will be attached to the official minutes.) 

 
 
 
 

 
 



Town Council Minutes 
September 8, 2015 
Page 5 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 

89. The Town Council will hear public comments on an application for Special 
Amusement License, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) (This item was 
discussed at 8:22 p.m.) 

 
Special Amusement 
Bowdoin College 
D/B/A: Bowdoin Dining Services – Magee’s Pub   S. Catherine Longley 
David Saul Smith Union    

 
Chair Brayman opened the public hearing. 
 
Deputy Town Clerk Elin Gould spoke on the item. 
 
Chair Brayman closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilor Walker moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to approve the Special Amusement 
License for Bowdoin College Magee’s Pub.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
90. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for September 21, 2015, 

for “An Ordinance Authorizing the Replacement and Upgrade of the Boiler and 
Domestic Hot Water System at Brunswick High School, With Total Project Costs 
Not to Exceed $575,000 (plus any other costs authorized hereunder), and Further 
Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an Amount not to Exceed $575,000 
(plus cost of issuance), plus any Additional Appropriation Authorized Hereunder,” 
and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) (This item was discussed at 8:23          
p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge explained this item. 
 
Paul Caron, School Department Facilities and Transportation Director, made a presentation. 
 
Councilor Harris, Councilor Perreault, Councilor Walker, and Councilor Watson asked 
questions, to which Paul Caron and Mike O’Brien from Siemens, responded. 
 
Chair Brayman opened the floor for public comments. 
 
Jim Trusiani, 6 Pleasant Street, commented on the lack of funds set aside for projects such as 
this. 
 
Joe Ciarrocca, 532 Harpswell Road, had several comments about current maintenance and the 
reliability of the proposed system. 
 

 
 



Town Council Minutes 
September 8, 2015 
Page 6 
 
Richard Fisco, 2 Lincoln Street, said he is suspicious of requirements recommended by the 
School Department. 
 
Councilor S. Wilson moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to set a public hearing for 
September 21, 2015, on “An Ordinance Authorizing the Replacement and Upgrade of the 
Boiler and Domestic Hot Water System at Brunswick High School, With Total Project  
Costs Not to Exceed $575,000 (plus any other costs authorized hereunder), and Further 
Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an Amount not to Exceed $575,000 (plus cost 
of issuance), plus any Additional Appropriation Authorized Hereunder.”   
 
Councilor Millett and Councilor Harris made suggestions on the topic.  Chair Brayman and 
Manager Eldridge responded. 
 
Councilor Watson asked a question, to which Paul Caron responded. 
 
Vote on the Motion: 
Councilor S. Wilson moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to set a public hearing for 
September 21, 2015, on “An Ordinance Authorizing the Replacement and Upgrade of the 
Boiler and Domestic Hot Water System at Brunswick High School, With Total Project  
Costs Not to Exceed $575,000 (plus any other costs authorized hereunder), and Further 
Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an Amount not to Exceed $575,000 (plus cost 
of issuance), plus any Additional Appropriation Authorized Hereunder.”  The motion 
carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
(Copies of a memo from the Town Manager and the School Superintendent, as well as a 
proposal from Siemens, and the proposed ordinance, will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
91. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for September 21, 2015, 

for “An Ordinance Authorizing the Funding and Completion of the Reappraisal 
and Revaluation of All Taxable Real Property and All Tax-exempt Real Property 
Located Within the Town of Brunswick With Total Project Costs Not to Exceed 
$400,000 (plus any other costs authorized hereunder), and Further Authorizing 
Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an Amount not to Exceed $400,000 (plus cost of 
issuance), plus any Additional Appropriation Authorized Hereunder,” and will 
take any appropriate action. (Manager) (This item was discussed at 8:56 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge reviewed the history of this project. 
 
Cathy Jamison, Assessor, spoke about where the Town is currently with its values. 
 
Councilor S. Wilson requested that the Assessor and Town Manager have explanations about 
revaluation and its benefits available at the public hearing. 
 
Councilor Millett asked a question, to which Manager Eldridge and Chair Brayman responded. 
 
Councilor S. Wilson asked a question, to which Cathy Jamison responded. 

 
 



Town Council Minutes 
September 8, 2015 
Page 7 
 
 
Chair Brayman opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Jim Trusiani, 6 Pleasant Street, said it is time for Brunswick to have a revaluation done. 
 
Richard Fisco, 2 Lincoln Street, said this is a good thing. 
 
Councilor Millett moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to set a public hearing for 
September 21, 2015, on “An Ordinance Authorizing the Funding and Completion of the 
Reappraisal and Revaluation of All Taxable Real Property and All Tax-exempt Real 
Property Located Within the Town of Brunswick With Total Project Costs Not to Exceed 
$400,000 (plus any other costs authorized hereunder), and Further Authorizing Issuance 
of Bonds and Notes in an Amount not to Exceed $400,000 (plus cost of issuance), plus any 
Additional Appropriation Authorized Hereunder.”  The motion carried with eight (8) 
yeas. 
 
(Copies of memos from the Town Manager and the Assessor, the relevant page from the CIP, 
and Capital Outlay Project Summary, as well as the proposed ordinance and bond amortization 
schedule, will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
92. The Town Council will consider accepting a Department of Environmental 

Protection Stream Crossing Infrastructure Improvement Project conditional 
contract award in the amount of $93,800 for culvert work on River Road, and will 
take any appropriate action. (Manager) (This item was discussed at 9:11 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge explained this item. 
 
Councilor Walker asked a question, to which Manager Eldridge responded. 
 
Councilor Millett moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded,  to authorize the Town Manager 
to enter into a contract with the State of Maine in the amount of $93,800 to be used to fund 
a culvert on River Road.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
(A copy of a memo from the Town Manager and a letter from DEP will be attached to the 
official minutes.) 
 
93. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Brunswick/Topsham Water 

District, and will take any appropriate action.  (Appointments Committee) (This 
item was discussed at 9:14 p.m.) 

 
Councilor Millett nominated Richard Moll for appointment and David Ivery for reappointment 
to the Brunswick Topsham Water District Board of Trustees for terms to expire on 9/13/2018. 
 
The Council voted unanimously to approve the nominations. 
 

 
 



Town Council Minutes 
September 8, 2015 
Page 8 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:15 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Elin M. Gould  
Deputy Town Clerk 
September 9, 2015 
 
 
 

September 21, 2015 
Date of Approval 

 
_______________________ 

Council Chair 
 

 
 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 









 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 
 

09/03/2015 11:48    |Town of Brunswick |P      1
jhenze              |AUGUST 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2016 02
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

10 Taxes                              
_________________________________________

 
111190 41101  Property Taxes   38,824,828  38,824,828         710.98         500.00                 38,824,117.02     .0% 
111190 41103  Deferred Property Tax     -200,000    -200,000            .00            .00                   -200,000.00     .0% 
111190 41104  Tax Abatements      -75,000     -75,000      -3,756.54        -720.62                    -71,243.46    5.0% 
111190 41105  Interest on Taxes       65,000      65,000      17,172.61       5,219.17                     47,827.39   26.4% 
111190 41106  Tax Lien Costs Revenu       13,000      13,000      16,249.80      15,474.38                     -3,249.80  125.0% 
111190 41107  Tax Lien Interest Rev       13,000      13,000      19,091.21      19,091.21                     -6,091.21  146.9% 
111190 41109  Payment in Lieu of Ta      175,000     175,000            .00            .00                    175,000.00     .0% 
111190 41199  Miscellaneous tax adj            4           4            .00            .00                          4.00     .0% 
111191 41110  Excise Tax - Auto    2,865,000   2,865,000     544,432.94     270,859.99                  2,320,567.06   19.0% 
111191 41111  Excise Tax Boat/ATV/S       25,000      25,000       2,909.00         427.90                     22,091.00   11.6% 
111191 41112  Excise Tax - Airplane        3,500       3,500            .00            .00                      3,500.00     .0% 

 
TOTAL Taxes                        41,709,332  41,709,332     596,810.00     310,852.03                 41,112,522.00    1.4%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   41,709,332  41,709,332     596,810.00     310,852.03                 41,112,522.00

 
20 Licenses & Fees                    
_________________________________________

 
121111 42207  Passport Fees        9,500       9,500       1,400.00         850.00                      8,100.00   14.7% 
121111 42209  Passport Picture Reve        3,000       3,000         630.00         360.00                      2,370.00   21.0% 
121411 42100  Building Permits      145,000     145,000      26,775.47      12,340.52                    118,224.53   18.5% 
121411 42101  Electrical Permits       34,000      34,000       5,700.10       2,472.48                     28,299.90   16.8% 
121411 42102  Plumbing Permits       22,000      22,000       5,707.50       3,120.00                     16,292.50   25.9% 
121411 42103  Zoning Board Fees            0           0          75.00            .00                        -75.00  100.0% 
121611 42200  Hunting & Fishing Lic        1,100       1,100         177.75          64.50                        922.25   16.2% 
121611 42201  Dog License Fee        2,500       2,500          70.00          27.00                      2,430.00    2.8% 
121611 42202  Vital Statistics       50,000      50,000       9,707.60       5,680.40                     40,292.40   19.4% 
121611 42203  General Licenses       21,270      21,270       1,973.00         198.00                     19,297.00    9.3% 
121611 42204  Victulars/Innkeepers       18,250      18,250         150.00            .00                     18,100.00     .8% 
121611 42205  Shellfish Licenses       17,400      17,400         375.00            .00                     17,025.00    2.2% 
121611 42206  Neutered/Spayed Dog L        4,730       4,730         104.00          40.00                      4,626.00    2.2% 
121611 42208  Postage Fees            0           0          39.98          39.98                        -39.98  100.0% 
121911 42300  Planning Board Appl F       22,500      22,500       7,743.40       3,278.40                     14,756.60   34.4% 
122121 42400  Fire Permits          500         500            .00            .00                        500.00     .0% 
122221 42500  Conc Weapons Permits          600         600          30.00          30.00                        570.00    5.0% 
123131 42600  Public Works Opening        8,000       8,000       3,680.00       2,750.00                      4,320.00   46.0% 

 
TOTAL Licenses & Fees                 360,350     360,350      64,338.80      31,251.28                    296,011.20   17.9%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      360,350     360,350      64,338.80      31,251.28                    296,011.20

 
30 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=6Mr1tPO84Y50j6BljzN2jMnUV/KcnPrp8TguDHzbKNpu3MIPdkybqyYR9Pj6fUWY&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Kf0rdO66B/hPFIZMNCNZWBm5ErFkduvBMi0kMNRZ2%2BnrSiC/%2BX0/rvkYce9pulir&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=T3Yl9F1CyjgHfXWRZujUq9dXh/HrtumCwznLxyElfgBJRKAFxRjS/Us3YBnv1a0D&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=xAAJ0nqpGl9YYclEdkc/sIVAScZGM8qSA30aKBIUblOtIg0IFfkKnOua%2BfbQQp7V&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=O58t%2BDFbKesH2nbNLyLS7Wa0XzmUZDVZIJqARfOtrwtt2l62dlkporO2il86wAWG&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=mNg97GR0NS%2Bi0aoFAtMlVRDqwu7oX37pmKEGcOWoSkKEBhhQKuCeyeLbIuF5N8bB&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=SyAeb%2Bf4c/fZAgSLA4iPhpOKw9Ve4N6F4yfv8g4Add42Z1ZBCafD1wJLYaIqIW0j&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=CkVO8EkwSMRRlLv1ua%2B6v4bQfTHAHZUybCtzadYiqWaQYxpENKRK1On0F3LTG6S0&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=rSnrCJtp7lGLdLHUoxHa2x38EgC2rF6CEoWtb0kawvOic99fiJG2ay8ZkPalZ28M&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=U6jVDqHfRzKjHCwtQo1KRX%2BeiB4IEwvdZE2LH/h4Ovq6x6fNNE%2BSPigIi4o2Zb1i&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=nIySvvpsVfYmP5c1fmTvM3kncPMfHPGzvk3vuLz5oiTKJgv/hk0AvYllkcenseW0&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=gWZYTCAROL6W6QKQb54KEP29A2TqoaUxhZqffX6aS5INh86zbvO5nrBKXc/N1LMe&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=8ImpbxUdq1LjFjPH8ZO33/mUMcH1BjSS5LICuhZsXE1/EfgyRC7EwlwHq%2Bgy6AJS&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ESduoqL8gEqp4aWK2wF1iMi18Oe1YM1qyEyLzbLz8nD5VCXfHdwaEV6/T8Lv5/fB&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=pAJJAOM4koekSkdd7yf/7Miv2Bmfz96URFH56K0qmZLatY36rRS/p9hlyYR3VRwC&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=6YVSvLV4bRuADS//a1H93aDRCYiT7PhlzGrEwevIEIBPo7Jc14OecMcGbOKfp0df&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=TUEx5fDZ6dekSNJhBF3573XTCkfuv%2B2zdOdTTGWWDyne/Vx531Zo2Ce/qcdwv%2BlN&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0TJPwnZsV3eS2hZ2wzZQE9Ut1p2q9Emwn3nN3FBKkmdkOechnGJwWR24VJNQH9AW&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=v83B3cmxKr1IXJQSfqd5Gt/rPHy9NGCJEALOhznlpMXgChrh53LMSpfgl5saGoJ9&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=uEnFZ5mKc3apmJc%2BgOJz8iSv7vR7sciwO5YjGOF2hA9KUxYjoCkdTP4FYX0PY7bT&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=oJb36fntzUG1pRJPjcDMyn5Y3WCQcv2sgGQfAMRQ49arVz5G3aT/cgOmJOpJ8otV&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=hSKNzN2FCtG9mOB/yVbvWGdv3YkNePZZi72hCqE8rMKPs8yavnu9S8jbLPw0rr7L&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Gz5l1NqTpN6xgJ1WkJhvNwUW8kyUghpDubk5rVh62eW2VZmZiUA1X1Hbb2pVSSSD&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=P6i5Udtkdj9Su/SUvQC1AdlW01hOgLFlw4tPzRNsjX82%2BuUFIOy30oNUUXlYQLSo&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=3hma8ZkFD5uZJ3KCUcIXqWC9ioS7aBQOgNWmHWoxrpGTnPNRbPpAyGOz7HGny%2BMm&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1K%2Bx6Byta8dmUQzAV%2ByeXKpFZ%2BtQ/g1ZIdvqcUGZIHUZmpetNgsM4C9OYfZDjyNK&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=H4FEZ238LSpHiVW2c8w3QzCqCVAe1o1GeIk60dnvXUcinpjCpXp46t9AYBEVLicT&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2BQ8lY%2B156ueBVoew/09Hht4OKpMd4BQXaTyC3afIWZn6WhbV0dnFmVXr1wg8X3%2B%2B&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=PhHZTnC7NiQT43espiUyKuTssWrwXHVo9mQXuRXxFcQEBPvVQ06EQNt0ZYn08oQq&


 
 
 

09/03/2015 11:48    |Town of Brunswick |P      2
jhenze              |AUGUST 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2016 02
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

131122 43505  FD EMPG grant       15,000      15,000            .00            .00                     15,000.00     .0% 
131132 43103  Highway Grant Fund      195,000     195,000            .00            .00                    195,000.00     .0% 
131142 43104  State General Assista       24,000      24,000         995.69         995.69                     23,004.31    4.1% 
131190 43102  State Tax Exemption R       40,000      40,000            .00            .00                     40,000.00     .0% 
131192 43101  State Revenue Sharing    1,088,154   1,088,154     226,944.65      75,411.32                    861,209.35   20.9% 
131192 43106  Snowmobile Receipts        1,400       1,400            .00            .00                      1,400.00     .0% 
134546 43120  State Education Subsi    9,826,081   9,826,081     744,104.83     744,104.83                  9,081,976.17    7.6% 

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental            11,189,635  11,189,635     972,045.17     820,511.84                 10,217,589.83    8.7%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   11,189,635  11,189,635     972,045.17     820,511.84                 10,217,589.83

 
40 Charges for services               
_________________________________________

 
141111 44110  Agent Fee Auto Reg       47,000      47,000       9,252.00       4,452.00                     37,748.00   19.7% 
141111 44111  Agent Fee Boat/ATV/Sn        1,500       1,500         267.00          54.00                      1,233.00   17.8% 
141211 44121  Rental of Property        1,200       1,200         200.00         100.00                      1,000.00   16.7% 
142121 44155  Ambulance Service Fee      845,000     845,000     158,585.73     111,076.29                    686,414.27   18.8% 
142121 44166  Special Detail - Fire        1,000       1,000         391.60         391.60                        608.40   39.2% 
142221 44161  Witness Fees        3,000       3,000         100.00         100.00                      2,900.00    3.3% 
142221 44162  Police Reports        4,500       4,500         430.00         430.00                      4,070.00    9.6% 
142221 44163  School Resource Offic       86,000      86,000            .00            .00                     86,000.00     .0% 
142221 44165  Special Detail - Poli        3,000       3,000       2,321.00       2,321.00                        679.00   77.4% 
142221 44167  Dispatch Services fee      143,760     143,760      32,058.41      11,170.18                    111,701.59   22.3% 
143431 44175  Recycling Revenue       25,000      25,000       4,937.80       2,470.60                     20,062.20   19.8% 
144545 44100  School Tuition, etc      102,000     102,000            .00            .00                    102,000.00     .0% 

 
TOTAL Charges for services          1,262,960   1,262,960     208,543.54     132,565.67                  1,054,416.46   16.5%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    1,262,960   1,262,960     208,543.54     132,565.67                  1,054,416.46

 
50 Fines & Penalties                  
_________________________________________

 
151621 45103  Unlicensed Dog Fines       10,000      10,000         200.00         100.00                      9,800.00    2.0% 
152121 45104  False Alarm Fire        1,000       1,000            .00            .00                      1,000.00     .0% 
152121 45107  Fire Code Violation F            0           0         400.00            .00                       -400.00  100.0% 
152221 45100  Ordinance Fines          600         600          70.00            .00                        530.00   11.7% 
152221 45101  Parking Tickets       30,000      30,000       4,995.00       1,985.00                     25,005.00   16.7% 
152221 45102  Leash Law Fines          100         100          25.00          25.00                         75.00   25.0% 
152221 45105  False Alarm Police          100         100            .00            .00                        100.00     .0% 

 
TOTAL Fines & Penalties                41,800      41,800       5,690.00       2,110.00                     36,110.00   13.6%

 
TOTAL REVENUES       41,800      41,800       5,690.00       2,110.00                     36,110.00

 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=GwhIlV70deJjfoOWPXIDARBqLDjiJH2P5EFyRy43fpJo0biyGEuJWr%2BSC%2B/1qG6c&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0BbRu/39ReAmpKdhGzg1oO81zK%2BoAQIt/myr6gKxeYq84xknNCx9bjIYg5Usiu6B&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Hv%2Bhjhro0rYh7fVckDI0QlZV6%2Bzw%2BUoY8MzJzeHk0f8ujHl0syXDjamMLF6psDHG&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=U13pnFaYSFaJcp2wesqo7Mkf2z6J916prC/T3uN78POvA200Rb9u0dpJBf4UUjQ7&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=02TBtJZMAy3hx9H3614WbZk3pzkEt/8S2gyY5Wu45Rawj/S7QSCZfDW4MnvuiEMU&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ur95u59GkPGlpZB81K9WGfvYGguEH2CvqeImD2pLx9PtLOhV8jpQ4J4S3EDDO65l&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=qbbD99q7PmsGh5SdFRr/35EP4Okb9xgozUY1DG2RY5XuJDju6nuJUaP6Z1lLe9Z5&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=SuO6Z8KWHZvEYiXM5Px5E6DUV7osx77E3MGc7YqiTwaV3niAv1RpKB5YldyHC1eR&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=mmLl/jAhw6Chou7N8wAQMIcLw5/3cCKliYCkZiI814OvYmqREeceTXmL1RyqwGat&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=mDYQAEa4tM8Fv8f/SctVMPNf5sm2qoLKlHYt5E54sHcTNS0ZHhGdDkMo/WAd2RpI&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=PcFvNamXZQHBLNDMMMX0vQIXv99LBeXPAzcTSTJq1%2BqGPB/kPyUQ443HBiZMVYAu&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=HqBb/sRWk7cv9kTEL/pcJYzL8pAHB6n29iJJfjtDrBVbmU7jTuZBacgljKJnIWW%2B&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=dEEZIK1lOR7xPggGKxLwVCLaxy5bXechLcbQnFE6LYQuP/T0KzS8DS/c48ow7nHo&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=/eA01EAxmc0hhPdebsjPF73V95PW0B6u1xREwVVXstMThdIQhYz/%2BzX7TS3mbTxt&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=WW7eZ3%2BtSED0oJW1/zhai3%2BBA5FQaeV4vGm3bq9fJEj09UNGYnRRFwqrgt4X3xP8&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=xu%2B%2Bf5RZsJk44ZAGR7s9Vw69e/51yGezVrD8UwWCX8lJdvwWBKifbz9aQnHiW9HC&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=QJ0eDr4IsB0J74eMpMIOqNp19iADN7KK47sS1FMPOnEJLrRG/OjZbWF3Ud8WzCSY&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=lf0vzOUI%2Bfd7WuZAfOtvVSvIkE0BLv3/fzmzylC1nuzs3aX19Zi2YSR2MlS/0rR8&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=MsLXc5T5pVHjqX21Zxsop8//bzAN6B/vS%2BmDLL7G9DmfdnghH7vqWZeYFrnUBBwK&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=SErc/ooIjlG0jbQnEQKHb1cpoEbDDPuNlkAZvrSgNezRlsrM%2Bg5%2BxjxvkZG%2B8WK3&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=KhYIYIZb7g0wLKWxegdFCiEKaxeL24KLabd2RuyYZHlOdK52coAU6LIQjDMHVHgM&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=o0kHWkbKDqXdIAZ6NX6tCs/QTh8suqCJiD3EagTsOEJtFShoxaPtXhoxtEjFaDmp&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ArLXHgtLpZPc%2B/DjX%2Bz/0CT70G3M%2BNSDAH4ECZWfKLa/o0QuwuvqnXVD/1tJ2hn0&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=5fI%2BRT2EB8qWASZGXttn4aP0mK%2BWB%2B8iwJg4jYXC7/IGSoafXR3ESmbKKOXJ4ZWU&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=HFQqbd7B38yv%2BOUIhvUvTtsB%2BIKXgtn5WwRVbGYlchjsu03av6iXa8ZsBdjWFtFi&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=sEAkHCJKQUhHwAwbhBEubkp2QJgvloWV8Y%2BdErw2Esc%2BcAti2xUfJvhaaKnSw%2BGh&


 
 
 

09/03/2015 11:48    |Town of Brunswick |P      3
jhenze              |AUGUST 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2016 02
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

60 Interest earned                    
_________________________________________

 
161193 46100  Interest Earned       20,000      20,000         853.68         853.68                     19,146.32    4.3% 

 
TOTAL Interest earned                  20,000      20,000         853.68         853.68                     19,146.32    4.3%

 
TOTAL REVENUES       20,000      20,000         853.68         853.68                     19,146.32

 
70 Donations                          
_________________________________________

 
171952 47000  BDC Contrib to Econ D       94,000      94,000            .00            .00                     94,000.00     .0% 
171952 47002  MRRA - MCOG DUES       15,000      15,000      15,208.50      15,208.50                       -208.50  101.4% 

 
TOTAL Donations                       109,000     109,000      15,208.50      15,208.50                     93,791.50   14.0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      109,000     109,000      15,208.50      15,208.50                     93,791.50

 
80 Use of fund balance                
_________________________________________

 
181100 48000  Unapprop General Fund      825,000     825,000            .00            .00                    825,000.00     .0% 
181100 48001  Bal of State Revenue       50,000      50,000            .00            .00                     50,000.00     .0% 
184500 48004  School Balance Forwar    3,067,309   3,067,309            .00            .00                  3,067,309.00     .0% 
184500 48005  Restricted-Sch Bond P      119,800     119,800            .00            .00                    119,800.00     .0% 

 
TOTAL Use of fund balance           4,062,109   4,062,109            .00            .00                  4,062,109.00     .0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    4,062,109   4,062,109            .00            .00                  4,062,109.00

 
90 Other                              
_________________________________________

 
191111 49000  Finance Miscellaneous        4,000       4,000     137,497.67     137,319.02                   -133,497.67 3437.4% 
191111 49104  Property & Casualty D            0           0      10,052.00      10,052.00                    -10,052.00  100.0% 
191111 49105  Postage & Handling            0           0          26.00           2.00                        -26.00  100.0% 
191111 49106  W/C Proceeds            0           0       5,563.01       3,399.62                     -5,563.01  100.0% 
191192 49100  Cable Television      225,000     225,000            .00            .00                    225,000.00     .0% 
191611 49000  Town Clerk Miscellane        1,300       1,300         298.25          66.50                      1,001.75   22.9% 
191911 49000  Planning Miscellaneou          200         200         111.00         105.00                         89.00   55.5% 
192121 49000  Fire Miscellaneous        5,800       5,800      14,022.00      14,022.00                     -8,222.00  241.8% 
192194 49151  Fire Vehicle Sales            0           0       5,700.00            .00                     -5,700.00  100.0% 

 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=vip5HGY/dgO4PzTWdCSUBFtmtuN0aXAclB/SGWCug7He90eBvQbMsR73jPbFSqbw&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=RsAjVS039AKnc/cXgYF2LE78cVyAlG8rDoqKf5XAVh2I1w%2B3gqbkL4L8gYIbDYah&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ZBDk3ppVfMcmPL4A9CuF%2BOavarl1CF7tBcSpLt3GspN8mGJ2sPu6y25Lx5a5g5u3&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Ck0%2BNg3l73h90rYlodHFzzCxAW8RdITLm3O682GsUFqtTMtNuYX1zfQACa4/NAD2&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=bOjtXQWNiTfRjexmnSwGjJyet88Gwdh6VTbHhvQ0y71WNpnsVh/6ETAI5aZlbz6f&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=pSf4FK/5MUqnhtwsByRfsQ6NkdiwKFHuKpQ%2BNcNYvQbI5qlqNv4F4eCTJiTFLuBP&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=CoI/NEbkvrwpZhAdBIv4hg4A0JZQGBnk4DCKqcp7OoXV%2BG9FTRMDo1mTBFD6l9MM&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=mQzrRY1i9LsIcF7ZfKTe0We%2B%2BaAGxhgHEmkp0x9r1S%2BknPIx8GYk7G1PrxPTbcYM&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1gsKN%2BekbqPnB1uD4M3ZY12c7%2BSt6uiN4IEzNQXtxhKsEWMN/UlK1uiT/IaDjJYz&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=yXRvadOrU1HcRY94QwaqGRIp/ej2yKqNaCxf/u/uHRMdeVTyI4n6yioMNFM6bhDD&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=9Id5FBimcckhLWyKZAnzaGLaACde6hxLz1Its6c7ARVpW2DnSE3Z0dAaXe9ulca%2B&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=eoH/dZPFNjm6GrDQfeQMdOrOoKobUAmdfMRnkp/RV0jwxr5S9M4AdD6wMDsM/oEm&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=bDDvdBbgDGw/i6/6ebu77jQeTXov7TQ0ijjSyt1IkzsTe6drdOtXmMlzPskQvWH3&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=DS2Jn2l0yyFtYKvUIqQAA9NuirUY3VDdSuARygb%2B2DUl8jE/3hjlqJvoAOAKtKUF&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Zd1ZwoCQCP5irLSKZKze4mMZFzcqhyMv/90ebUFds2j%2BMttzQXgbvF9fG42V8YTw&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=hKkS6dbk6Fg%2BT8hPkJM8r8Cqz0hSKfxJXsSsNki13gEIqJGgDzgBUdBn5TfBwaQe&


 
 
 

09/03/2015 11:48    |Town of Brunswick |P      4
jhenze              |AUGUST 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2016 02
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
192221 49000  Police Miscellaneous       10,000      10,000      14,011.21      14,000.00                     -4,011.21  140.1% 
193131 49000  Public Works Miscella        2,000       2,000          12.28          12.28                      1,987.72     .6% 
194545 49000  School Miscellaneous       93,000      93,000       4,049.63       3,994.63                     88,950.37    4.4% 
199980 48100  General Fund Transfer      500,000     500,000            .00            .00                    500,000.00     .0% 

 
TOTAL Other                           841,300     841,300     191,343.05     182,973.05                    649,956.95   22.7%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      841,300     841,300     191,343.05     182,973.05                    649,956.95

 
GRAND TOTAL   59,596,486  59,596,486   2,054,832.74   1,496,326.05                 57,541,653.26    3.4%

 
                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=F1K4EmIRn%2BE5ELo2%2BUOTiigZmtlxYigcAsNSh3EpbmDr7SWvMcfljGPwWTtcs559&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=S91r5MPRrom9r7yUxdCkTCbyhaJMqQ1JKTVNNmi7SC%2BxN60%2BCiiwIHpFSaIar%2B3y&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=GeLqmQIYKUd0SQiP9QgyvYrXZcUBpcwW60N/Npr9G4lVimo/FLyLXvegnuQ5fLew&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=w9b4ZiBALJy2PbBmACAnOUe1KQ3HnSGsn11s8HVu/ZOz/HfNfXRLqQ2avFzAEVCS&


 
 
 

09/03/2015 11:50    |Town of Brunswick |P      1
jhenze              |AUGUST 2015 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2016 02
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
                                            APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

00 Fill                               
_________________________________________

 
19000 General Fund Transfers Out    1,368,236   1,368,236   1,418,236.00   1,418,236.00            .00     -50,000.00  103.7%

 
TOTAL Fill                          1,368,236   1,368,236   1,418,236.00   1,418,236.00            .00     -50,000.00  103.7%

 
 

10 General Government                 
_________________________________________

 
11000 Administration      583,769     583,769      65,330.97      41,630.93            .00     518,438.03   11.2%
11100 Finance Department      710,161     710,161      99,630.07      57,291.37            .00     610,530.93   14.0%
11150 Technology Services Dept      363,164     363,164     109,618.07      25,431.17      62,799.11     190,746.82   47.5%
11200 Municipal Officers       85,665      85,665       2,598.30       1,525.58            .00      83,066.70    3.0%
11210 Munic Bldg - 85 Union      214,863     214,863      26,133.81      11,975.61       5,612.45     183,116.74   14.8%
11230 Risk Management      479,057     479,057     124,760.71       4,598.56      78,332.50     275,963.79   42.4%
11240 Employee benefits            0           0     104,377.61     126,745.86            .00    -104,377.61  100.0%
11250 Cable TV       61,298      61,298       7,176.58       3,925.00         150.36      53,971.06   12.0%
11300 Assessing      295,863     295,863      36,306.21      17,438.41       3,328.00     256,228.79   13.4%
11600 Town Clerk & Elections      363,719     363,719      43,528.40      25,491.15         139.90     320,050.70   12.0%
11900 Planning Department      480,995     480,995      51,756.63      30,624.40            .00     429,238.37   10.8%
11950 Economic Development Dept      115,106     115,106      15,714.24      10,219.54      -1,620.00     101,011.76   12.2%

 
TOTAL General Government            3,753,660   3,753,660     686,931.60     356,897.58     148,742.32   2,917,986.08   22.3%

 
 

20 Public Safety                      
_________________________________________

 
12100 Fire Department    3,154,491   3,154,491     389,433.07     227,205.83      50,124.01   2,714,933.92   13.9%
12150 Central Fire Station       59,158      59,158       5,102.57       2,512.26       1,325.00      52,730.43   10.9%
12160 Emerson Fire Station       49,328      49,328       7,720.56       5,807.76       5,331.75      36,275.69   26.5%
12200 Police Department    3,836,175   3,836,175     502,381.65     272,871.73         568.00   3,333,225.35   13.1%
12210 Police Special Detail            0           0       1,985.87       1,985.87            .00      -1,985.87  100.0%
12220 Emergency Services Dispatch      812,214     812,214      99,531.35      56,908.81       5,895.00     706,787.65   13.0%
12250 Police Station Building      101,431     101,431       7,227.22       4,969.05            .00      94,203.78    7.1%
12310 Streetlights      211,000     211,000      32,242.54      16,280.96            .00     178,757.46   15.3%
12320 Traffic Signals       31,600      31,600       3,839.50       3,312.50            .00      27,760.50   12.2%
12330 Hydrants      465,000     465,000       4,200.95            .00            .00     460,799.05     .9%
12340 Civil Emergency Preparedness        2,000       2,000         480.00         480.00            .00       1,520.00   24.0%

 
TOTAL Public Safety                 8,722,397   8,722,397   1,054,145.28     592,334.77      63,243.76   7,605,007.96   12.8%

 
 

30 Public Works                       
_________________________________________

 



 
 
 

09/03/2015 11:50    |Town of Brunswick |P      2
jhenze              |AUGUST 2015 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2016 02
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
30       Public Works                       APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

13100 Public Works Administration      446,577     446,577      56,681.74      33,124.69            .00     389,895.26   12.7%
13110 PW General Maintenance    1,713,865   1,713,865     156,564.39      88,397.99      37,330.25   1,519,970.36   11.3%
13130 Refuse Collection      611,556     611,556      68,306.43      63,412.03     332,818.77     210,430.80   65.6%
13140 Recycling      298,631     298,631      23,644.93      23,834.93     263,111.07      11,875.00   96.0%
13150 PW Central Garage      724,112     724,112      92,897.87      59,378.09       9,308.00     621,906.13   14.1%

 
TOTAL Public Works                  3,794,741   3,794,741     398,095.36     268,147.73     642,568.09   2,754,077.55   27.4%

 
 

40 Human Services                     
_________________________________________

 
14100 General Assistance      169,994     169,994      17,768.00       9,478.74         260.77     151,965.23   10.6%
14120 Health & Social Services       12,766      12,766      18,378.25            .00            .00      -5,612.25  144.0%

 
TOTAL Human Services                  182,760     182,760      36,146.25       9,478.74         260.77     146,352.98   19.9%

 
 

45 Education                          
_________________________________________

 
14500 School Department   36,525,855  36,525,855   1,957,754.58     793,394.62            .00  34,568,100.42    5.4%

 
TOTAL Education                    36,525,855  36,525,855   1,957,754.58     793,394.62            .00  34,568,100.42    5.4%

 
 

50 Recreation and Culture             
_________________________________________

 
15000 Recreation Administration      439,700     439,700      64,068.53      34,442.34            .00     375,631.47   14.6%
15050 Rec Buildings and Grounds      699,391     699,391      95,124.69      64,081.58      -5,630.00     609,896.31   12.8%
15250 Rec Building 211      173,982     173,982       4,953.56       4,750.93         764.53     168,263.91    3.3%
15300 Teen Center       15,000      15,000      15,000.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%
15310 People Plus      118,300     118,300     119,300.00       6,000.00      -6,000.00       5,000.00   95.8%
15400 Curtis Memorial Library    1,325,000   1,325,000     327,499.97     218,333.34            .00     997,500.03   24.7%

 
TOTAL Recreation and Culture        2,771,373   2,771,373     625,946.75     327,608.19     -10,865.47   2,156,291.72   22.2%

 
 

60 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 
16000 County tax    1,360,042   1,360,042            .00            .00            .00   1,360,042.00     .0%

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

09/03/2015 11:50    |Town of Brunswick |P      3
jhenze              |AUGUST 2015 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2016 02
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
60       Intergovernmental                  APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental             1,360,042   1,360,042            .00            .00            .00   1,360,042.00     .0%

 
 

70 Unclassified                       
_________________________________________

 
17000 Promotion and Development      161,917     161,917     123,450.30      30,432.84            .00      38,466.70   76.2%
17010 Additional School Assistance       10,000      10,000            .00            .00            .00      10,000.00     .0%
17020 Cemetery Care        3,000       3,000       2,000.00       1,000.00            .00       1,000.00   66.7%
17030 Wage Adjustment Account       43,000      43,000            .00            .00            .00      43,000.00     .0%

 
TOTAL Unclassified                    217,917     217,917     125,450.30      31,432.84            .00      92,466.70   57.6%

 
 

80 Debt Service                       
_________________________________________

 
18020 2006 CIP G/O Bonds      244,000     244,000            .00            .00            .00     244,000.00     .0%
18030 2011 GO CIP Bonds      255,380     255,380            .00            .00            .00     255,380.00     .0%
18040 Police Station Bond      400,125     400,125            .00            .00            .00     400,125.00     .0%

 
TOTAL Debt Service                    899,505     899,505            .00            .00            .00     899,505.00     .0%

 
 

GRAND TOTAL   59,596,486  59,596,486   6,302,706.12   3,797,530.47     843,949.47  52,449,830.41   12.0%
 

                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 





 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



September 16, 2015 

To:   Town Council 
From:    Bridger Tomlin, Bowdoin Fellow  
Subject: Kate Furbish Trail Naming: Town Council Report 

As part of my Bowdoin summer fellowship for the Town of Brunswick’s Planning office, 
I have focused on the Kate Furbish Preserve and naming its trails. This trail naming project has 
been conducted with the intent to name various segments after the people and places that were a 
part of the Merriconeag Community, where the Preserve is now, from the 1700s until the time of 
the Brunswick Naval Air Station expansion in 1953. The goal of this naming is to best represent 
the community throughout history and various changes over time.  

In order to ascertain the most comprehensive and diverse perspective on the Merriconeag 
Community, what life was like there, and what families played an important role in the area, I 
have delved into a variety of resources. The following people and documentation have been 
instrumental in supplying background on the parcel and considerable historical information on 
the community and its resident’s lives: 

• Fred Koerber: Local Historian 

• Barbara Desmarias: Local Historian 

• Richard Snow: Local Historian 

• Tim Tetu: Land abutter and history aficionado 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 

INCORPORATED 1739 

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 

85 UNION STREET 
BRUNSWICK, ME  04011 

BRIDGER G. TOMLIN 303-817-8985

BOWDOIN FELLOW TO PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT bfellow@brunswickme.org

!  

mailto:bfellow@brunswickme.org


• Julie Isbill: NPS Rivers, Trails, and Conservation Assistant.  

• The Pejepscot Historical Society 

• Helene Bisson: Lived in the Merriconeag Community 

• Bea Dubois: Lived in the Merriconeag Community 

• New Meadows and Gatchell Cemetery site walks: Cemeteries for the Merriconeag 
Community  

• RTOS Kate Furbish Preserve Management plan 

• BNAS Environmental Impact Statement 

• Historical maps, newspaper articles, photographs, and diaries.  

• Tax and legal documentation 

• Brunswick Naval Air Station (BNAS) Reports 

A planning committee comprised of me and four Brunswick High School are now ready 
to propose the trail names. The high school students, all rising seniors include Mae Wilson, Noah 
Imperato, Julia Casey, and Ben Farrell. This committee, which has been meeting weekly as of 
June 17th  until the week of July 20th, has been busy looking at historical accounts of and 
information on the Merriconeag community, interviewing people who resided in the community, 
and touring the preserve and the remains of the community that was once there. In my time being 
a fellow for the Town of Brunswick’s Planning and Development office, from June 2nd to 
August 5th, working 40 plus hours a week, about 3/5ths of my time was spent working on this 
project.  

 Additionally, the committee has put out press releases asking for public input and 
information from people who lived in the community in The Times Record, The Forecaster, The 
Coastal Journal, The Portland Press Harold, and a Brunswick email subscription called the 
“Brunswick Blast.” There have been other articles printed about this trail naming in The 
Forecaster, the Bangor Daily News, and by Bowdoin College. 

In determining which names got selected and paired with a trail or other Preserve feature, the 
trail naming committee established the following criteria: 

• How long the family/person lived on the Preserve or was a part of the community. 
• Where the family/person lived in the community. 
• If the family/person had any interesting or noteworthy stories that are supported by 

objective sources. 
• If the family/person contributed significantly to the community. 



• Level to which the family/person already has a road or something else named after them 
in Brunswick. 

As of now, the naming committee comprised of myself and four Brunswick High School 
students propose these specific names for trails, trailheads, and scenic overlooks. These names 
were selected with the intent of creating the most robust and complete historical picture and 
representation of the Merriconeag Community throughout the three centuries it existed. These 
names are found to be the most names that best represent the different types of people, stories, 
and industry that defined the community.  

These are the following names we are proposing:  

West Side: 
• Given Trail: The Given family emigrated from Ireland in the early 1700s where they 

were deeply involved in the shipbuilding industry and maritime culture. The Givens 
owned a large portion of land on both the West and East side of the current Preserve. 

• Dunning Trail: English immigrants that lived in the community from 1717. The family 
built some of the first ships in Middle Bay and took part in the heralded tradition of 
shipbuilding that came to define this area. The Dunnings lived on the West side of the 
community where the Preserve runs close to Harpswell road. 

• Hummer Trail: The family lived in the community at the start of the 20th century and 
owned the 1st home on Old Middle Bay Road. Their Property was by Dyer’s Corner on 
the W. side on the North where the golf clubhouse is now. Their property taken by the 
federal government in 1953. 

• Von Huene Connector: Aimee Von Huene and her 6 children moved to the community 
in 1948 from Germany after her husband was killed in WWII. Her male children attended 
Bowdoin and she fixed up a 150+ year old home in the community. The family home was 
on the Old Middle Bay Road which ran through the NW area of the Preserve. The house 
was taken in 1953 by the federal government. 

• Grange Gathering Trailhead: The Dirigo Grange existed in the Western edge of the 
community on Harpswell road and Old Middle Bay road. It served as an important 
cultural and social location for the whole community. It burned down twice in the 1950s 
and 1960s. 

• Shipbuilder’s Scenic Overlook: Great views of Harpswell Cove are accessible from this 
viewpoint. It is named in honor of the shipbuilding industry that defined much of this area 
and employed a large portion of the community. Shipyards existed in land south of the 
Preserve, this overlook gives a glimpse of where the building occurred. 

• Lachapelle Loop: The loop honors the story of how a plane crashed into the Lachapelle’s 
(luckily vacant) home, completely flattening the house; no one was hurt or injured. This 
loop hints at the relationship between the community and the Navy and the future impact 
the BNAS would have on Merriconeag. The Lachapelle home was north of the Preserve 
towards Harpswell road. 



• Merriconeag Bridge: The bridge connects the East and the West side of the Preserve, 
similar to how the name Merriconeag connected the people that comprised the 
community.  

East Side: 
• Gatchell Loop: The Gatchell family lived in the community from the late 1700s, but 

started operating a saw mill on Mare Brooke in the 1800s that was a centerpiece of the 
area. The family has their own graveyard by Coombs and Purinton Roads. The Gatchell 
mill and home was located in the northern part of the Preserve at the beginning of Mare 
Brook. They also operated the woolen caroling and brick making mills. 

• Farrin Trail: The Farrin’s were Irish immigrants with the first family member moving in 
1755 to Brunswick, where he taught school for many years. They had a farmstead and 
built the “Old Farrin Place” which would later house many other families. The Farrin 
homestead was located on the Southeast area of the Preserve near Prince’s Point road. 

• Varney Trail: Mr. and Mrs. Ralph Varney and her brother Milton Sadler lived in a house 
that was more than 100 years old (at the time). Milton Sadler operated a farm. Their 
property was situated on the Southeast side of the community. Members of the family 
have lived there since 1905, but their home was taken by the federal government in the 
1950s. 

• Marriner Trail: The family existed in the community in 1871 where they lived on the 
Northrsdy side by the Old Merriconeag road.  

• Leo’s Lane: Miss Mary Leo owned a home until the 1950’s near Prince’s Point road in 
the Southeast area of the Preserve; it was the old Farrin house. In 1938, Mary was one of 
Brunswick’s first permanent residents to make an outlying country farm her year round 
home. She owned a salt water marsh and operated a farm. Her story represents a new 
wave of residents hoping to settle down in the community, but were evicted by the federal 
government and not able to set true roots down.  

• Tarr Trail: The family owned property as of 1871 on the Southeast side of the 
community on old Prince’s Point road, slightly to the South of the Preserve. Harvey Tarr 
went to Prince’s Point School as a boy in the early 1900s. The school was later shut down 
in the 1930s. This family descended from Richard Tarr, who was born in the West of 
England around 1660; his grandchildren moved to Maine in early 1700s. William Tarr 
settled on Merriconeag Neck prior to 1753 (Located on the eastern section of the 
Preserve) 

• Snow Trail: The Snow family owned a big farm and property dating back to the early 
1800s. They had land taken on the Southeastern side of the community by the federal 
government in 1953. 

• Old School Trail: Two schools existed in the community until the 1930s: Prince’s Point 
School and Middle Bay School; many attendees met their future spouses at both schools. 
Old School Trail represents the youth that lived there and the community at large. The 



Prince’s Point School was located at the Northern tip of the trail, located within the 
Preserve. 

• Pulsifer’s Point: Paul and Jean owned and operated another sawmill in the community in 
the 1900s and lived near the old Prince’s Point Road in the old school house. This point 
named after them harkens back to the sawmill tradition and resource utilization in the area 
that occurred in Mare Brook. 

• Coffin’s Corner: William Coffin owned a house in 1910 at the Southwestern Corner of 
Middle Bay road and Harspwell road by the Grange. (44 Harpswell road.) Robert Coffin 
had a house for summer residence, taken in 1953 on the East side by Prince’s Point road. 
This house was made by the Given’s for their son. 

• Prince’s Peek: The Prince family operated a large farm and controlled a large swath of 
land in the community that spans both the West and East side of the Preserve. This scenic 
overlook named in their honor supplies excellent views of Prince’s Point, thus termed 
Prince’s “Peek.” The Prince’s family residence dates back to the late 1800s. Their 
property was taken by the federal government in 1953.  

• Abenaki Trailhead: The Abenaki Indian tribe subsisted in this area before European 
resettlement. While there is no major evidence that there was a major settlement where 
the Preserve is now, there are some archeological sites that suggest various hunting and 
gathering and migratory practices in the area. 

• Farm House Trailhead: This trailhead is named to commemorate the major form of 
subsistence that defined the community, farming. A majority of residents farmed and 
cultivated the surrounding area. Some relics and foundations of farmsteads and 
homesteads can still be seen today; one such farmstead, operated by the Jordan family is 
located very close to this trailhead. 

• Chard Trailhead: This trailhead commemorates the Chard family who lived in the 
community from the early 1900s and operated a chicken farm that supplied the 
community until their home was taken by the federal government in 1953.This chicken 
farm was located on the East side of the property very close to the trailhead. 

Attached on the next page is a map of the Kate Furbish Preserve with the proposed 
trails paired with their respective trail and a legend of when the trail can be expected to be 
open for recreation. 

If there are any more suggestions or information that one believes would be to use to the 
trail naming effort, please let me know. Feel free to contact me, Bridger at 
bfellow@brunswickme.org or 303-817-8985. I will be at the Town Council meeting on 
September 21th, 2015 to address any questions and to speak about the trail naming.  

mailto:bfellow@brunswickme.org


 
Intentionally left blank 







 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - D 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - E 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT – F 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 











 
 

 
ITEM 94 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



















 
 

 
ITEM 95 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



	
	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 September	2,	2015	
	
SUBJECT:	 Brunswick	High	School	Boiler	Project	
	
	
	
The	Town’s	2016‐20	Capital	Improvement	Program	(CIP),	adopted	on	May	28,	2015,	recommends	
funding	the	replacement	of	boilers	and	related	equipment	at	Brunswick	High	School.		The	
replacement	was	scheduled	to	take	place	in	the	2016‐17	fiscal	year.		The	School	Department	is	
recommending	that	this	project	be	moved	to,	and	funded	in,	the	current	fiscal	year.		The	estimated	
cost	of	the	project	is	$575,000.		The	department	had	originally	planned	to	reconstruct	the	High	
School	track	in	this	year,	however	it	is	not	prepared	to	move	forward	on	that	project	at	this	time.	
	
Attached	please	find	the	following:	
	

 Relevant	pages	from	the	CIP	
 Memorandum	and	attachments	prepared	by	the	School	Department	explaining	the	project	
 A	bond	ordinance	authorizing	the	project	and	the	issuance	of	bonds	to	fund	it.	
 An	estimated	debt	service	scheduled	that	assumes	that	the	bonds	will	be	amortized	over	ten	

years.	
	
Paul	Perzanoski	will	be	in	attendance	at	the	September	8th	Council	meeting	to	explain	the	project	
and	answer	questions.		Should	the	Council	agree	to	authorize	the	project,	it	needs	to	set	a	public	
hearing	on	the	bond	ordinance.	



	
	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
FROM:	 Paul	Perzanoski	 	 	 Paul	A.	J.	Caron	
	 Superintendent	of	Schools	 	 Director	of	Facilities	&	Transportation	
	 Brunswick	School	Department		 Brunswick	School	Department		
	
DATE:	 August	28,	2015	
	
SUBJECT:	 Brunswick	High	School	Boiler	Replacement	
	
	
	
The	Brunswick	High	School	Boiler	Replacement	project	has	been	in	the	Capital	Improvement	
Program	for	several	years.		This	project	is	to	replace	the	original	boiler	plant	equipment	with	three	
modern	energy‐efficient	boilers	designed	to	run	in	the	90%	efficiency	range.	The	current	system	is	a	
dual	fuel	boiler	which,	because	of	its	design	for	multiple	fuels,	cannot	operate	at	the	potential	
efficiency	of	today's	systems.			Because	of	its	inability	to	operate	efficiently,	one	of	the	boilers	is	kept	
off	for	most	of	the	year	and	this	causes	condensation	to	the	point	that	it	has	been	cited	for	several	
years	by	the	boiler	inspector.	He	fears	that	the	corrosion	will	ultimately	lead	to	failure	of	the	boiler.		
	
The	project	also	includes	the	replacement	of	the	domestic	hot	water	system	to	a	more	efficient	
system.	Currently,	due	to	the	configuration	of	the	heaters	and	the	large	size	of	the	tank,	far	too	much	
hot	water	is	being	heated	during	school	hours	and	especially	overnight	and	during	non‐school	days.	
																																														
The	BHS	Boiler	Replacement	project	was	originally	planned	for	the	2016‐17	fiscal	year,	and	the	Track	
project	was	expected	to	be	completed	in	the	2015‐16	fiscal	year.		As	the	Track	project	has	been	
delayed	for	further	study,	the	School	Board	has	decided	to	switch	the	projects	and	pursue	the	BHS	
Boiler	project	in	fiscal	year	2015‐16.	
	
Attached	is	a	proposal	from	Siemens	to	complete	the	project	for	a	cost	of	$575,000.	
	
In	the	CIP	the	BHS	Boiler	project	was	anticipated	to	be	funded	through	bonds.		We	request	that	the	
Town	Council	allow	this	project	to	go	forward	in	2015‐16,	and	approve	the	necessary	funding.		
	
	

























Pr
oj

ec
t S

um
m

ar
y

20
14

-1
5

20
15

-1
6

20
16

-1
7

20
17

-1
8

20
18

-1
9

20
19

-2
0

T
O

T
A

L
FU

N
D

IN
G

 

I. 
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
S 

R
E

C
O

M
M

E
N

D
E

D
 F

O
R

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

C
ap

ita
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s -
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
M

cL
el

la
n 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
1,

10
0,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

G
en

. F
un

d 
B

al
.

17  
L

ib
ra

ry
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

U
pg

ra
de

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
13

2,
50

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
13

2,
50

0
   

   
   

   
G

en
. F

un
d 

B
al

.
E

m
er

so
n 

F
ir

e 
S

ta
ti

on
 I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

15
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
G

.O
. B

on
ds

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

B
oi

le
r 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
R

oo
f

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
R

es
er

ve
s

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
R

oo
f 

(p
ar

ti
al

)
16

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

R
es

er
ve

s
B

JH
S

 A
ir

 Q
ua

li
ty

45
4,

08
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
G

.O
. B

on
ds

19  
B

H
S

 B
oi

le
r 

P
la

nt
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

55
3,

03
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

55
3,

03
0

   
   

   
   

G
.O

. B
on

ds
T

ot
al

 F
ac

ili
tie

s -
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
1,

77
0,

08
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

68
5,

53
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
68

5,
53

0
   

   
   

   

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
21  

C
ro

ss
w

al
k 

li
gh

ts
25

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

R
es

er
ve

s
C

ro
ss

w
al

k 
li

gh
ts

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

10
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

10
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

M
.D

.O
.T

N
an

cy
/P

at
ri

ci
a/

P
ie

rc
e 

R
ec

on
st

r
58

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

G
.O

. B
on

ds
A

nd
ro

sc
og

gi
n 

B
ik

e 
P

at
h 

D
es

ig
n

20
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
R

es
er

ve
s

23  
P

in
e 

S
tr

ee
t a

cc
es

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
60

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
60

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
Im

pa
ct

 F
ee

s
25  

R
iv

er
w

al
k

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

80
0,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

80
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

M
.D

.O
.T

R
iv

er
w

al
k

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

20
0,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

20
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

O
th

er
T

ot
al

 In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
62

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
16

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0,

00
0

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
16

0,
00

0
   

   
   

C
ap

ita
l A

cq
ui

si
tio

ns
27  

T
el

ec
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
R

es
er

ve
s

T
el

ec
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

G
en

. F
un

d 
B

al
.

29  
P

&
R

 S
id

ew
al

k 
tr

ac
to

r/
sn

ow
bl

ow
er

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

12
5,

50
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

12
5,

50
0

   
   

   
   

G
.O

. B
on

ds
31  

E
ng

in
e 

2 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

52
5,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

52
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

G
.O

. B
on

ds
T

ot
al

 C
ap

ita
l A

cq
ui

si
tio

ns
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
17

5,
50

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
52

5,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

70
0,

50
0

   
   

   
   

O
th

er
 P

ro
je

ct
s

33  
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

R
ev

al
ua

ti
on

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
G

.O
. B

on
ds

T
ot

al
 O

th
er

 P
ro

je
ct

s
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
40

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
40

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   

T
ot

al
 C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
2,

44
5,

08
0

$ 
   

   
73

5,
50

0
$ 

   
   

  
1,

68
5,

53
0

$ 
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

52
5,

00
0

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

94
6,

03
0

$ 
   

  

20
16

-2
0 

C
IP

Pr
oj

ec
t S

um
m

ar
y

Pa
ge

 2

Pr
op

os
ed

: M
ar

ch
 1

6,
 2

01
5 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
ri

ng
:  

M
ay

 1
4,

 2
01

5 
A

do
pt

ed
:  

M
ay

 2
8,

 2
01

5 



TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE
CAPITAL OUTLAY PROJECT SUMMARY

FY  2016-2020

PROJECT TITLE PROJECT NO.
BHS Boiler plant replacement and upgrade
DEPARTMENT PROJECT MANAGER DEPT. PRIORITY

School Department School Facilities Manager
PROJECT LOCATION TIF (Y or N) DISTRICT USEFUL LIFE (years)

Brunswick High School 25                
PROJECT DESCRIPTION    Describe the project and summarize why the project is necessary.  Address evaluation criteria.

PROJECT SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS   (estimates should cover entire cost of project)

SOURCES OF FUNDS Thru 6/30/15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 TOTAL

G.O. Bonds -                   553,030       553,030       
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   

     TOTALS -                   -                   553,030       -                   -                   -                   553,030       
USES OF FUNDS Thru 6/30/15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 TOTAL

Turnkey installation, etc. -                   553,030       553,030       
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   

TOTALS -                   -                   553,030       -                   -                   -                   553,030       
What is the source and date of your cost estimate?     (e.g. preliminary estimate -  6/30/13, design - 12/31/12, etc....)

This project goal is to replace the original boiler plant equipment with modern energy efficient designed to run in the 90% 
efficiency range. The current system is a dual fuel boiler which, because of it's design for multiple fuels, cannot operate at the 
potential efficiency of today's systems. I plan to install 3 boilers that will stage at minimal operating temperature (125 degree) 
for a single unit to all three boilers operating at maximum output. 

I also plan to replace the domestic hot water system so that we can operate that system more efficiently. Currently we heat far 
too much how water during school hours and even more during non-school days and times. These days with the use of low 
flow aerators and fixtures, we tend to pull hot water from the boiler, but with the minimal flow, we don't actually get the 
water. This is wasted energy being pulled but never actually used. 

Because of its inability to operate efficiently one of the boilers is kept off for most of the year and in doing so causes it to 
condensate to the point that it has been sited for several years by the boiler inspector. He fears that the corrosion will 
ultimately lead it to failure because of the corrosion. I do not want to get caught with insufficient heating during the winter 
thereby needing to respond by emergency mode and ending up with a system that will be less than thius efficiency.

Siemens Technology 8/13/2013, revised from 2012 for $527,000. (Added 3% for 2015-16)

Projects2016-20 BHS Boiler Page 19
Printed on: 5/29/2015

2:55 PM



CONSISTENCY WITH PLANS AND STUDIES
Describe how this project is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and/or other plans or studies.

INTERDEPARTMENTAL OR INTERAGENCY IMPACT
Explain how this project will impact other departments or agencies.  Do you know of any other project with which this

project could or should be combined in order to maximize the benefits from each?

IMPACT ON OPERATING BUDGETS
Provide an estimate of the annual costs or savings that will result from this project over the next five (5) years.  Show savings as negative.

Type of Cost/(Savings) 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 TOTAL

Direct energy savings 22,000         22,000         22,000         22,000         22,000         110,000       
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   

                                    TOTALS (net) 22,000         22,000         22,000         22,000         22,000         110,000       
Explain the changes in the operating budgets     (i.e. additional personnel or equipment, increased revenues. etc.)

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED     Describe what was considered as an alternative to this project.

 EFFECT OF DELAYING THIS PROJECT     What is the effect if this project is not funded or funding is delayed?

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS     Discuss any other information that should be considered for this project.

Meets the needs of the Brunswick School Department as it grows to meet future educational demands

Minimal extra departmental interaction. Should or could be combined with other Major Capital Improvement Projects

Projects2016-20 BHS Boiler Page 20
Printed on: 5/29/2015

2:55 PM



 

 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 
 
 

An Ordinance Authorizing the Replacement and Upgrade of the Boiler and Domestic Hot Water 
System at Brunswick High School, With Total Project Costs Not to Exceed $575,000 (plus any other 
costs authorized hereunder), and Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an Amount 

not to Exceed $575,000 (plus cost of issuance), plus any Additional Appropriation Authorized 
Hereunder  

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council (the “Council”) of the Town of Brunswick (the “Town”) has adopted a 
Capital Improvement Program for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2016 - 2020 (the “CIP”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the CIP recommends replacement of the Brunswick High School boiler, along with other 
improvements in the boiler room as identified in the project developed by the School Department, (the 
“Brunswick High School Boiler Project”) to be funded with general obligation debt; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the School Department, with its HVAC service contractor, has established a project budget 
of $575,000, all of which is expected to be financed with the issue of general obligation bonds; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Charter of the Town of Brunswick, Maine (the “Charter”) requires that any capital 
acquisition to be financed solely or partly by the issuance of bonds or notes to be authorized by ordinance; 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE THE FOLLOWING ORDINANCE IS ADOPTED. 

 
Section 1.  Funding Sources and Appropriations. 
 

a. A total of five hundred and seventy-five thousand ($575,000), plus any additional 
amounts authorized under this ordinance, are appropriated to finance the cost of boiler 
replacement and upgrades, including acquisition and installation of boilers for heating 
and domestic hot water at Brunswick High School (the “Project”).   
 

b. The issue and sale of the Town’s general obligation bonds or notes (and notes in 
anticipation thereof) is authorized in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed five 
hundred and seventy-five thousand ($575,000), plus the cost of issuance.  The proceeds 
of the bonds and notes are appropriated to finance the costs of the Project.  The bonds and 
notes may also be used to reimburse the Town for any prior expenditures on the Project, 
or to refinance notes or advances as authorized herein.   

 
Section 2.  Authorization for Project.  The Town Manager is authorized to negotiate, execute, 

and deliver, in the name of and on behalf of the Town, such contracts, agreements, and other documents 
and certificates as the Town Manager may determine to be necessary or appropriate in connection with 
the Project.  The aforementioned items shall be in such form and contain such terms and conditions as 
may be approved by the Town Manager.  Such approval shall be conclusively evidenced by the Town 
Manager’s execution thereof, provided however, that the Town Manager may delegate the authority 
granted hereunder as the Town Manager deems appropriate. 

 
Section 3.  Project Costs Defined.  The term “cost” or “costs” as used herein and applied to the 

Project, or any portion thereof, includes: 



 

 

 
a. the cost of planning, and engineering, and other professional services associated with the 

Project;  
b. the costs related to applying for and obtaining all permits and licenses, 
c. the cost of constructing the Project, and all costs determined by the Town Manager to be 

necessary to place the Project in service and ready for its intended use;  
d. the cost of insuring the Project while under construction and for a reasonable period upon 

substantial completion of the project, including builders risk, general liability, product 
liability, workers compensation and any other insurance costs the Town Manager 
determines is related to the Project; 

e. the costs of financing the Project including but not limited to financing charges and 
issuance costs, underwriters' fees and costs, legal and accounting fees and costs, 
application fees, and other fees and expenses related to financing the Project;  

f. interest costs prior to and during construction and for a period not to exceed three years 
from the issue date of the bonds, underwriters' fees and costs, legal and accounting fees 
and costs, application fees, and other fees and expenses related to the financing 
transaction;  

g. any other costs identified in the Project budget provided with the proposal, and the cost of 
any other items or services deemed to be cost under generally accepted accounting 
principles (“GAAP”) as determined by the Town’s Finance Director. 
 

Section 4.  Details of the Bonds or Notes.   
 

a. Execution and Delivery of Bonds and Notes.  The bonds and notes issued hereunder, and 
any issued as the result of exchanges or transfers, shall be signed by the Treasurer and be 
countersigned by the Chair of the Town Council.  The bonds and notes shall have the seal 
of the Town affixed thereon, and be attested by the Town Clerk.  The Treasurer and Chair 
of the Town Council, from time to time, shall execute such bonds and notes as may be 
required to provide for exchanges or transfers of bonds and notes hereinbefore 
authorized.  
 

b. Book Entry Certificates  In lieu of physical certificates of the bonds and notes, the 
Treasurer be and hereby is authorized to undertake all acts necessary to provide for the 
issuance and transfer of such bonds and notes in book-entry form pursuant to the 
Depository Trust Company Book-Entry Only System.  As an alternative to the provisions 
herein regarding physical transfer of bonds, and the Treasurer is authorized and 
empowered to enter into a Letter of Representation or any other contract, agreement or 
understanding necessary or, in the Treasurer’s opinion, appropriate in order to qualify the 
bonds for and participate in the Depository Trust Company Book-Entry Only System. 

 
c. Tax Exempt Bonds Option.  The Treasurer and Chair of the Town Council are 

individually authorized to determine whether to issue the bonds and notes authorized 
herein as taxable bonds and notes or tax-exempt bonds and notes.  To the extent such 
bonds and notes are issued as tax-exempt bonds, the Treasurer and Chair of the Town 
Council are individually authorized to covenant and agree, on behalf of the Town and for 
the benefit of the holders of such bonds and notes, that the Town will file any required 
reports and take any other action that may be necessary to ensure that interest on the 
bonds and notes will remain exempt from federal income taxation and that the Town will 
refrain from any action that would cause interest on the bonds and notes to be subject to 
federal income taxation. 



 

 

 
d. No Arbitrage Certification.  The Treasurer and Chair of the Town Council are 

individually authorized to covenant and certify on behalf of the Town that no part of the 
proceeds of the bonds and notes shall be used directly or indirectly to acquire any 
securities or obligations, the acquisition of which would cause such bonds or notes to be 
“arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986, as amended. 

 
e. Qualified Tax Exempt Obligations.  The Treasurer is hereby authorized and empowered 

to take all such action as may be necessary to designate such bonds and/or notes as 
qualified tax-exempt obligations for purposes of Section 265(b) of the Code; it being the 
Town’s intention that the Treasurer, with advice of bond counsel, to make the required 
Section 265(b) election with respect to such bonds and notes, but only to the extent the 
election may be available and advisable as determined by the Treasurer. 

 
f. Principal Denominations.  The principal amount of the bonds of the same maturity shall 

be such minimum denomination as the Treasurer, in the Treasurer’s discretion, may 
approve. 

 
g. Maturities and Interest Rates.  The maturity(ies), interest rate(s) and sale price of the 

bonds or notes issued hereunder shall be either sent out to bid or negotiated by the 
Treasurer in such manner as the Treasurer deems appropriate and in the best interest of 
the Town and the financing of the above-referenced Project.  The Treasurer be and 
hereby is authorized to provide that any of the bonds or notes hereinbefore authorized 
may be made callable, with or without premium, prior to their stated dates of maturity.  
The bonds or notes hereby authorized shall be in such form and to otherwise contain such 
other terms and provisions as the Treasurer may approve, his or her approval to be 
conclusively evidenced by his/her execution thereof.   

 
h. Consolidation of Bond or Notes.  Any or all of the bonds or notes issued hereunder may 

be consolidated with and become a part of any other issue of bonds or notes authorized to 
be issued by any previous or subsequent ordinance of the Town Council of the Town of 
Brunswick. 

 
i. Other Authorized Officials.  If the Treasurer, Chair of the Town Council or Town Clerk 

are for any reason unavailable to approve and execute the bonds hereinbefore authorized 
or any other documents necessary or convenient to the issuance, execution and delivery 
of the bonds, the person or persons then acting in any such capacity, whether as an 
assistant, a deputy, or otherwise, is authorized to act for such official with the same force 
and effect as if such official had performed such act. 

 
j. Absence of Officials Prior to Delivery.  If any of the officials of the Town who have 

signed or sealed the bonds or notes shall cease to be such officials before the bonds or 
notes signed and sealed shall have been actually authenticated or delivered by the Town, 
such bonds and notes nevertheless may be authenticated, issued, and delivered with the 
same force and effect as though the person or persons who signed or sealed such bonds or 
notes had not ceased to be such officer or official; and also any such bonds and notes may 
be signed and sealed on behalf of the Town by those persons who, at the actual date of 
the execution of such bonds and notes, shall be the proper officials of the Town, although 



 

 

at the nominal date of such bonds and notes any such person shall not have been such 
officer or official. 

 
Section 5.  Sale of Bonds or Notes and Registrar, Paying Agent and Transfer Agent 
 

a. Official Statement.  The Treasurer is authorized to prepare, or cause to be prepared, a 
Preliminary Official Statement and an Official Statement for use in the offering and sale 
of the bonds or notes.  The Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement shall be 
in such form and contain such information as may be approved by the Treasurer, with the 
advice of the underwriter for the bonds or notes and bond counsel for the Town.  The 
distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement in the name 
of and on behalf of the Town in connection with offering the bonds or notes is approved. 

 
b. Counsel.  The Treasurer is authorized to select Issuer Counsel, Bond Counsel and any 

other counsel the Treasurer deems necessary in connection with the planning, sale and 
issuance of the notes or bonds, and to execute and deliver such contracts or agreements as 
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith. 
 

c. Underwriter.  The Treasurer is authorized to select the underwriter for the bonds and 
notes, and to execute and deliver such contracts or agreements as may be necessary or 
appropriate in connection therewith. 

 
d. Registrar, Paying Agent and Transfer Agent.  The Treasurer is authorized to select the 

registrar, paying agent, and transfer agent for the bonds or notes and to execute and 
deliver such contracts and agreements as may be necessary or appropriate to secure their 
services.  The bonds and notes shall be transferable only on the registration books of the 
Town kept by the transfer agent.  Upon surrender of the bonds or notes with an 
accompanying written instrument of exchange or transfer, executed by the registered 
owner or the owner’s attorney, duly authorized in writing and satisfactory to the transfer 
agent, the Town and the transfer agent shall make a charge sufficient to cover any tax, fee 
or any other governmental charge required to be payable with respect to such exchange or 
transfer.  Subsequent to the first exchange or transfer, the cost of preparing new bonds or 
notes upon exchanges or transfer thereof shall be paid by the person requesting the same. 

 
Section 6.  Refunding.  The Treasurer and Chair of the Town Council be and hereby are 

authorized to execute a refunding of general obligation bonds and notes herein authorized when the 
Treasurer and the Chair of the Town Council determine that such refunding is in the best interest of the 
Town.  All delegated authority provided pursuant to this ordinance shall also apply to a refunding bond 
and note issue relating to the general obligation bonds and notes herein authorized. 

 
Section 7.  Continuing Disclosure.  The Treasurer and Chair of the Town Council be and hereby 

are individually authorized to covenant, certify, and agree, on behalf of the Town, for the benefit of the 
holders of such bonds and notes, that the Town will file any required reports, make any annual financial 
or material event disclosure, and take any other action that may be necessary to ensure that the disclosure 
requirements imposed by Rule 15c12-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission are met. 

 
Section 8.  Investment Earnings and Other Bond Proceeds.  Any investment earnings on the 

proceeds of the bonds and notes and any other unexpended proceeds thereof are appropriated for the 
following purposes: 

 



 

 

a. To any costs of the Project in excess of the amounts authorized herein; 
b. In accordance with the applicable terms and conditions of the Town’s Arbitrage and Use 

of Proceeds Certificate delivered in connection with the sale of the bonds or notes 
including, to the extent permitted thereunder, to interest on the bonds or notes, or to the 
Town's general fund; 

c. To any other qualified costs approved by the Town Council and not prohibited by the 
Town Charter or Ordinances, Maine law or the Internal Revenue Code. 

 
Section 9.  Authority to Levy Tax for Debt Service.  In each of the years during which any of 

the bonds or notes are outstanding, there shall be levied a tax in an amount which, with other revenues, if 
any, available for that purpose, shall be sufficient to pay the interest on said bonds or notes, payable in 
such year, and the principal of such bonds maturing in such year. 

 
Section 10.  Authority to Accept Grants and Contributions.  The Town Manager is authorized 

to accept contributions and make applications for federal and state grant funds, said contributions and 
grants to be used in lieu of or in addition to bond proceeds authorized hereunder.  The Town Manager is 
authorized to accept contributions and grants on behalf of the Town and said amounts are hereby 
appropriated to fund any portion of the Project.  The total amount appropriated under this Ordinance shall 
not be greater than the amount of bond proceeds plus any contributions and grants, and plus any other 
amounts appropriated herein. 

Section 11.  Advances to Fund Project.  The Town is authorized to make advances, from the 
Town’s general fund to a capital projects fund, in an aggregate amount not to exceed $575,000 in 
anticipation of the issuance of bonds or notes, or for the purpose of financing any part of the Project.  
Advances used in lieu of bonds or notes authorized hereunder, are appropriated to finance the cost, or any 
part thereof, of the Project.  The Treasurer is authorized to establish and amend all details of any advances 
including, but not limited to the term, interest rates, and payment schedule.  The authority to issue the 
bonds and notes authorized herein shall remain and continue in full force and effect during the entire term 
of the advance(s).  The proceeds of the bonds and notes issued hereunder may be used to repay the 
advance(s) of any portion thereof. 

 
Section 12.  Declaration of Official Intent.  Advances from the Town’s general fund may 

finance the original expenditures related to the Project.  It is expected that those advances will be 
reimbursed in part or in whole by the issuance of bonds or notes authorized hereunder.  It is the intent of 
the Town Council that this Ordinance shall constitute the Town’s declaration of official intent within the 
meaning of Treasury Regulation 1.150-2.  

 
Section 13.  Abandonment of Borrowing Authority.  The Treasurer is empowered to declare 

abandoned the authority to issue any bonds or notes the Treasurer deems to be in excess of the amount 
necessary to complete the Project.  Such a declaration once made may not be reversed other than by 
ordinance. 

 
 

Proposed to Town Council:   September 8, 2015 
Public Hearing:    
Adopted by Town Council:  



ASSUMPTIONS: PROJECT NO: 4                              
Amount Financed: 575,000               Total Interest: 88,550                     
Number of Years: 10                        Total Cost: 663,550                   
Interest Rate: 2.80%
Start Bond Year: 31                        

BOND FISCAL TOTAL CUMMULATIVE
YEAR YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST PAYMENTS BALANCE EQUITY

30           2015-16 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
31           2016-17 57,500.00            16,100.00            73,600.00            517,500.00          57,500.00                
32           2017-18 57,500.00            14,490.00            71,990.00            460,000.00          115,000.00              
33           2018-19 57,500.00            12,880.00            70,380.00            402,500.00          172,500.00              
34           2019-20 57,500.00            11,270.00            68,770.00            345,000.00          230,000.00              
35           2020-21 57,500.00            9,660.00              67,160.00            287,500.00          287,500.00              
36           2021-22 57,500.00            8,050.00              65,550.00            230,000.00          345,000.00              
37           2022-23 57,500.00            6,440.00              63,940.00            172,500.00          402,500.00              
38           2023-24 57,500.00            4,830.00              62,330.00            115,000.00          460,000.00              
39           2024-25 57,500.00            3,220.00              60,720.00            57,500.00            517,500.00              
40           2025-26 57,500.00            1,610.00              59,110.00            -                       575,000.00              
41           2026-27 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
42           2027-28 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
43           2028-29 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
44           2029-30 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
45           2030-31 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
46           2031-32 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
47           2032-33 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
48           2033-34 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
49           2034-35 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
50           2035-36 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
51           2036-37 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
52           2037-38 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
53           2038-39 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
54           2039-40 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
55           2040-41 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
56           2041-42 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
57           2042-43 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
58           2043-44 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
59           2044-45 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
60           2045-46 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           

TOTAL 575,000.00          88,550.00            663,550.00          

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE
Bond Amortization Schedule

BHS Boiler Plant Replacement

O:\Finance\Capital Projects\CIP\CIP 2016\2017-21 CIP4 Page 1



 
 

 
ITEM 96 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



	
	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 September	2,	2015	
	
SUBJECT:	 Revaluation	Project	
	
	
	
The	Town’s	2016‐20	Capital	Improvement	Program	(CIP),	adopted	on	May	28,	2015,	recommends	
funding	a	complete	revaluation	of	all	taxable	property	at	an	estimated	cost	of	$400,000.		The	CIP	
further	recommends	that	the	project	be	funded	with	the	issuance	of	bonds	to	be	amortized	over	
five	years.		The	relevant	pages	from	the	CIP	are	attached,	along	with	a	proposed	bond	ordinance	
and	a	projected	amortization	schedule	for	the	bonds.	
	
Also	attached	is	a	memorandum	from	Assessor	Cathy	Jamison,	explaining	why	she	continues	to	
advocate	for	a	reassessment	of	property	tax	values.		Over	the	summer,	Cathy	developed	an	RFP	to	
be	utilized	in	the	solicitation	and	selection	of	a	firm	to	conduct	the	revaluation.		
	
If	the	Council	votes	to	fund	the	revaluation	project,	the	RFP	would	be	issued	later	this	fall.		We	
anticipate	that	a	contract	would	be	executed	by	year	end,	with	work	to	commence	at	the	start	of	
2016.		Implementation	of	new	values	would	be	effective	for	the	2017‐18	fiscal	year.	
	
Should	the	Town	Council	wish	to	move	forward	with	the	revaluation	project,	it	will	need	to	
establish	a	public	hearing	date	for	the	proposed	bond	ordinance.	
	



	
	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
FROM:	 Cathy	Jamison	
	 Assessor	
	
DATE:	 September	2,	2015	
	
SUBJECT:	 Revaluation	Project	
	
	
	
The	Town	of	Brunswick	completed	its	last	revaluation	in	2000.		At	that	time,	all	residential	and	
commercial	properties	were	inspected	and	new	values	assessed	in	order	to	bring	the	assessments	
to	fair	market	value.		We	are	currently	at	a	70%	assessment	ratio	for	the	2015	tax	year.			This	is	an	
average	ratio	for	all	types	of	properties	comparing	the	assessed	value	to	selling	price.				Recent	sales	
are	indicating	that	the	market	is	improving.		The	assessment	ratios	on	a	lot	of	properties	selling	are	
in	the	60’s	percent	range	and	below.			
	
A	proposal	for	a	revaluation	company	to	do	a	complete	revaluation	is	$400,000.		This	would	include	
revaluing	residential	and	commercial	properties	with	an	interior	inspection	and	listing	of	all	
properties.		New	cost	tables	for	land	and	buildings	would	be	developed	to	reflect	the	current	
market.		The	town	would	then	be	at	a	100%	assessment	ratio.		It	has	been	15	years	since	the	
majority	of	the	properties	have	been	reassessed.	
	
The	Maine	Constitution	states	that	all	taxes	upon	real	and	personal	estate,	assessed	by	authority	of	
this	State,	shall	be	apportioned	and	assessed	equally	according	to	just	value.	Just	value	is	
synonymous	with	market	value.		An	equalization	project	is	the	reappraisal	of	all	real	estate	to	bring	
about	uniformity	in	property	valuations.	The	purpose	is	to	value	all	properties	by	the	same	
standard	so	that	each	property	owner	is	paying	only	their	fair	share	of	the	cost	of	essential	
community	services.	
	
Changes	in	economic	conditions	have	caused	inequities	to	develop.		Different	types	of	properties	
increase	in	value	at	different	rates	thereby	creating	inequalities	among	property	tax	owners.		Some	
properties	may	be	overvalued	while	others	are	undervalued.		The	solution	to	this	problem	is	to	
equalize	all	properties	and	bring	assessments	up	to	date	with	current	market	value.		It	is	about	
being	equitable	and	fair	to	all	property	owners.		
	
Most	likely,	values	will	change	on	all	properties.	However,	not	all	property	values	will	change	at	the	
same	rate.		Some	neighborhoods	may	have	increased	in	value,	decreased	in	value	or	remained	the	
same.		One	purpose	of	the	equalization	project	is	to	make	sure	that	the	assessed	values	reflect	the	
changes	that	have	occurred	in	the	real	estate	market.	
	
Based	on	our	review	of	current	sales	data,	we	expect	a	revaluation	will	produce	a	tax	shift	from	
commercial	properties	to	residential	properties.	Not	all	commercial	properties	will	see	a	decrease	
in	their	values	for	the	same	reason	residential	owners	may	not	see	a	decrease	in	their	properties.		
Within	the	residential	properties	we	also	expect	to	see	tax	shifts	in	among	the	various	property	
classes.	



Pr
oj

ec
t S

um
m

ar
y

20
14

-1
5

20
15

-1
6

20
16

-1
7

20
17

-1
8

20
18

-1
9

20
19

-2
0

T
O

T
A

L
FU

N
D

IN
G

 

I. 
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
S 

R
E

C
O

M
M

E
N

D
E

D
 F

O
R

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

C
ap

ita
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s -
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
M

cL
el

la
n 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
1,

10
0,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

G
en

. F
un

d 
B

al
.

17  
L

ib
ra

ry
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

U
pg

ra
de

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
13

2,
50

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
13

2,
50

0
   

   
   

   
G

en
. F

un
d 

B
al

.
E

m
er

so
n 

F
ir

e 
S

ta
ti

on
 I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

15
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
G

.O
. B

on
ds

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

B
oi

le
r 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
R

oo
f

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
R

es
er

ve
s

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
R

oo
f 

(p
ar

ti
al

)
16

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

R
es

er
ve

s
B

JH
S

 A
ir

 Q
ua

li
ty

45
4,

08
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
G

.O
. B

on
ds

19  
B

H
S

 B
oi

le
r 

P
la

nt
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

55
3,

03
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

55
3,

03
0

   
   

   
   

G
.O

. B
on

ds
T

ot
al

 F
ac

ili
tie

s -
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
1,

77
0,

08
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

68
5,

53
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
68

5,
53

0
   

   
   

   

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
21  

C
ro

ss
w

al
k 

li
gh

ts
25

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

R
es

er
ve

s
C

ro
ss

w
al

k 
li

gh
ts

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

10
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

10
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

M
.D

.O
.T

N
an

cy
/P

at
ri

ci
a/

P
ie

rc
e 

R
ec

on
st

r
58

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

G
.O

. B
on

ds
A

nd
ro

sc
og

gi
n 

B
ik

e 
P

at
h 

D
es

ig
n

20
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
R

es
er

ve
s

23  
P

in
e 

S
tr

ee
t a

cc
es

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
60

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
60

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
Im

pa
ct

 F
ee

s
25  

R
iv

er
w

al
k

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

80
0,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

80
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

M
.D

.O
.T

R
iv

er
w

al
k

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

20
0,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

20
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

O
th

er
T

ot
al

 In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
62

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
16

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0,

00
0

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
16

0,
00

0
   

   
   

C
ap

ita
l A

cq
ui

si
tio

ns
27  

T
el

ec
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
R

es
er

ve
s

T
el

ec
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

G
en

. F
un

d 
B

al
.

29  
P

&
R

 S
id

ew
al

k 
tr

ac
to

r/
sn

ow
bl

ow
er

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

12
5,

50
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

12
5,

50
0

   
   

   
   

G
.O

. B
on

ds
31  

E
ng

in
e 

2 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

52
5,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

52
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

G
.O

. B
on

ds
T

ot
al

 C
ap

ita
l A

cq
ui

si
tio

ns
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
17

5,
50

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
52

5,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

70
0,

50
0

   
   

   
   

O
th

er
 P

ro
je

ct
s

33  
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

R
ev

al
ua

ti
on

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
G

.O
. B

on
ds

T
ot

al
 O

th
er

 P
ro

je
ct

s
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
40

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
40

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   

T
ot

al
 C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
2,

44
5,

08
0

$ 
   

   
73

5,
50

0
$ 

   
   

  
1,

68
5,

53
0

$ 
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

52
5,

00
0

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

94
6,

03
0

$ 
   

  

20
16

-2
0 

C
IP

Pr
oj

ec
t S

um
m

ar
y

Pa
ge

 2

Pr
op

os
ed

: M
ar

ch
 1

6,
 2

01
5 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
ri

ng
:  

M
ay

 1
4,

 2
01

5 
A

do
pt

ed
:  

M
ay

 2
8,

 2
01

5 



TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE
CAPITAL OUTLAY PROJECT SUMMARY

FY  2016-2020

PROJECT TITLE PROJECT NO.
Property Revaluation

PROJECT MANAGER DEPT. PRIORITY
Assessing Dept Assessor 1                  

PROJECT LOCATION TIF (Y or N) DISTRICT USEFUL LIFE (years)
N 10                

PROJECT DESCRIPTION    Describe the project and summarize why the project is necessary.  Address evaluation criteria.

PROJECT SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS   (estimates should cover entire cost of project)

Source of Funds: Thru 6/30/15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 TOTAL

G.O. Bonds 400,000       400,000       
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   

     TOTAL SOURCES -                   400,000       -                   -                   -                   -                   400,000       
Use of Funds: Thru 6/30/15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 TOTAL

-                   
Property Revaluation 400,000       400,000       

-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   

TOTAL USES -                   400,000       -                   -                   -                   -                   400,000       
What is the source and date of your cost estimate?     (e.g. preliminary estimate -  6/30/13, design - 12/31/12, etc....)

The Town of Brunswick completed its last revaluation in 2000.  At that time, all residential and commercial properties were 
inspected and new values assessed in order to bring the assessments to fair market value.  We are currently at a 70% 
assessment ratio for the 2015 tax year.   This is an average ratio for all types of properties comparing the assessed value to 
selling price.    Recent sales are indicating that the market is improving.  The assessment ratios on a number of current 
property sales are in the 60’s percentage range and below.

In addition, changes in economic conditions have caused inequities to develop.  Different types of properties increase in value 
at different rates thereby creating inequalities among property tax owners.  Some properties may be overvalued while others 
are undervalued.  The solution to this problem is to equalize all properties and bring assessments up to date with current 
market value. The Maine Constitution states that all taxes upon real and personal estate, assessed by authority of this State, 
shall be apportioned and assessed equally according to just value. Just value is synonymous with market value.  An 
equalization project is the reappraisal of all real estate to bring about uniformity in property valuations. The purpose is to value 
all properties by the same standard so that each property owner is paying only their fair share of the cost of essential 
community services.

The proposal for a revaluation company to do a complete revaluation is $400,000.  This would include revaluing residential 
and commercial properties with an interior inspection and listing of all properties.  New cost tables for land and buildings 
would be developed to reflect the current market.  The revaluation contract would also include new images, all mailings (I&E 
and valuation notices), informal hearings, and final hearing change notices.

Estimate/quote from KRT Appraisal dated 5/20/14, confirmed still valid by email March 2015.

Projects2016-20 Revaluation Page 33
Printed on: 5/29/2015

2:55 PM



CONSISTENCY WITH PLANS AND STUDIES
Describe how this project is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and/or other plans or studies.

INTERDEPARTMENTAL OR INTERAGENCY IMPACT
Explain how this project will impact other departments or agencies.  Do you know of any other project with which this

project could or should be combined in order to maximize the benefits from each?

IMPACT ON OPERATING BUDGETS
Provide an estimate of the annual costs or savings that will result from this project over the next five (5) years.  Show savings as negative.

Type of Cost/(Savings) 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 TOTAL

-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   

                                    TOTALS (net) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Explain the changes in the operating budgets     (i.e. additional personnel or equipment, increased revenues. etc.)

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED & EFFECT OF DELAYING THIS PROJECT
Describe what was considered as an alternative to this project.  What is the effect if this project is not funded or delayed?

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS     Discuss any other information that should be considered for this project.

None

State law requires that assessed values must be at least 70% of full valuation.  The ratio is 70% for 2015, but it is likely that 
the ratio will fall below 70% in future years.

The Maine Constitution, Art. IX, § 7. Valuation. While the public expenses shall be assessed on
estates, a general valuation shall be taken at least once in 10 years.  

None

Projects2016-20 Revaluation Page 34
Printed on: 5/29/2015

2:55 PM



  
 

1 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 
 
 
An Ordinance Authorizing the Funding and Completion of the Reappraisal and Revaluation of All 
Taxable Real Property and All Tax-exempt Real Property Located Within the Town of Brunswick 
With Total Project Costs Not to Exceed $400,000 (plus any other costs authorized hereunder), and 
Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes in an Amount not to Exceed $400,000 (plus cost 

of issuance), plus any Additional Appropriation Authorized Hereunder  

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council (the “Council”) of the Town of Brunswick (the “Town”) has adopted a 
Capital Improvement Program for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2016 – 2020 (the “CIP”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the CIP identifies the reappraisal and revaluation of all taxable real property and all tax-
exempt real property located within the Town of Brunswick (the “Property Revaluation Project”) to be 
undertaken beginning in the 2015-16 fiscal year, at a cost not to exceed $400,000, to be funded with 
general obligation debt; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Charter of the Town of Brunswick, Maine (the “Charter”) requires that any project to be 
financed solely or partly by the issuance of bonds or notes to be authorized by ordinance; 
 
NOW THEREFORE THE FOLLOWING ORDINANCE IS ADOPTED. 

 
Section 1.  Funding Sources and Appropriations. 
 

a. A total of four hundred thousand ($400,000), plus any additional amounts authorized 
under this ordinance, are appropriated to finance the cost the reappraisal and revaluation 
of all taxable real property and all tax-exempt real property located within the Town of 
Brunswick (the ”Project”). 
 

b. The issue and sale of the Town’s general obligation bonds or notes (and notes in 
anticipation thereof) is authorized in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed four 
hundred thousand ($400,000), plus the cost of issuance.  The proceeds of the bonds and 
notes are appropriated to finance the costs of the Project.  The bonds and notes may also 
be used to reimburse the Town for any prior expenditures on the Project, or to refinance 
notes or advances as authorized herein.   

 
Section 2.  Authorization for Project.  The Town Manager is authorized to negotiate, execute, 

and deliver, in the name of and on behalf of the Town, such contracts, agreements, and other documents 
and certificates as the Town Manager may determine to be necessary or appropriate in connection with 
the Project.  The aforementioned items shall be in such form and contain such terms and conditions as 
may be approved by the Town Manager.  Such approval shall be conclusively evidenced by the Town 
Manager’s execution thereof, provided however, that the Town Manager may delegate the authority 
granted hereunder as the Town Manager deems appropriate. 

 
Section 3.  Project Costs Defined.  The term “cost” or “costs” as used herein and applied to the 

Project, or any portion thereof, includes: 
 



  
 

2 

a. the cost of all or any portion of the Project, including all costs of preparing for work on 
the Project, contracted professional services to complete the Project, and all costs relating 
to finalizing the Project to be ready for its intended use and placed in service; 

b. the cost of financing charges and issuance costs, including premiums for insurance; 
c. the cost of interest prior to the date of the execution of any agreement or contract for the 

Project, through the date the Project is complete and placed in service, however, for a 
period not to exceed three years from the issue date of the bonds or notes; 

d. the cost of underwriters' fees and costs, legal and accounting fees and costs, application 
fees, and other fees and expenses related to financing the Project;  

e. the cost of all other financing authorized hereunder, whether related or unrelated to the 
foregoing; 

f. the cost of any other item or service deemed to be a cost under generally accepted 
accounting principles (“GAAP”) as determined by the Treasurer. 

 
Section 4.  Details of the Bonds or Notes.   
 

a. Execution and Delivery of Bonds and Notes.  The bonds and notes issued hereunder, and 
any issued as the result of exchanges or transfers, shall be signed by the Treasurer and be 
countersigned by the Chair of the Town Council.  The bonds and notes shall have the seal 
of the Town affixed thereon, and be attested by the Town Clerk.  The Treasurer and Chair 
of the Town Council, from time to time, shall execute such bonds and notes as may be 
required to provide for exchanges or transfers of bonds and notes hereinbefore 
authorized. 
 

b. Book Entry Certificates  In lieu of physical certificates of the bonds and notes, the 
Treasurer be and hereby is authorized to undertake all acts necessary to provide for the 
issuance and transfer of such bonds and notes in book-entry form pursuant to the 
Depository Trust Company Book-Entry Only System.  As an alternative to the provisions 
herein regarding physical transfer of bonds, and the Treasurer is authorized and 
empowered to enter into a Letter of Representation or any other contract, agreement or 
understanding necessary or, in the Treasurer’s opinion, appropriate in order to qualify the 
bonds for and participate in the Depository Trust Company Book-Entry Only System. 

 
c. Tax Exempt Bonds Option.  The Treasurer and Chair of the Town Council are 

individually authorized to determine whether to issue the bonds and notes authorized 
herein as taxable bonds and notes or tax-exempt bonds and notes.  To the extent such 
bonds and notes are issued as tax-exempt bonds, the Treasurer and Chair of the Town 
Council are individually authorized to covenant and agree, on behalf of the Town and for 
the benefit of the holders of such bonds and notes, that the Town will file any required 
reports and take any other action that may be necessary to ensure that interest on the 
bonds and notes will remain exempt from federal income taxation and that the Town will 
refrain from any action that would cause interest on the bonds and notes to be subject to 
federal income taxation. 
  

d. No Arbitrage Certification.  The Treasurer and Chair of the Town Council are 
individually authorized to covenant and certify on behalf of the Town that no part of the 
proceeds of the bonds and notes shall be used directly or indirectly to acquire any 
securities or obligations, the acquisition of which would cause such bonds or notes to be 



  
 

3 

“arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986, as amended. 

 
e. Qualified Tax Exempt Obligations.  The Treasurer is hereby authorized and empowered 

to take all such action as may be necessary to designate such bonds and/or notes as 
qualified tax-exempt obligations for purposes of Section 265(b) of the Code; it being the 
Town’s intention that the Treasurer, with advice of bond counsel, to make the required 
Section 265(b) election with respect to such bonds and notes, but only to the extent the 
election may be available and advisable as determined by the Treasurer. 

 
f. Principal Denominations.  The principal amount of the bonds of the same maturity shall 

be such minimum denomination as the Treasurer, in the Treasurer’s discretion, may 
approve. 

 
g. Maturities, and Interest Rates.  The maturity(ies), interest rate(s) and sale price of the 

bonds or notes issued hereunder shall be either set out to bid or negotiated by the 
Treasurer in such manner as the Treasurer deems appropriate and in the best interest of 
the Town and the financing of the above-referenced Acquisition.  The Treasurer be and 
hereby is authorized to provide that any of the bonds or notes hereinbefore authorized 
may be made callable, with or without premium, prior to their stated dates of maturity.  
The bonds or notes hereby authorized shall be in such form and to otherwise contain such 
other terms and provisions as the Treasurer may approve, his or her approval to be 
conclusively evidenced by their execution thereof.   

 
h. Consolidation of Bond or Notes.  Any or all of the bonds or notes issued hereunder may 

be consolidated with and become a part of any other issue of bonds or notes authorized to 
be issued by any previous or subsequent ordinance of the Town Council of the Town of 
Brunswick. 

 
i. Other Authorized Officials.  If the Treasurer, Chair of the Town Council or Town Clerk 

are for any reason unavailable to approve and execute the bonds hereinbefore authorized 
or any other documents necessary or convenient to the issuance, execution and delivery 
of the bonds, the person or persons then acting in any such capacity, whether as an 
assistant, a deputy, or otherwise, is authorized to act for such official with the same force 
and effect as if such official had performed such act. 

 
j. Absence of Officials Prior to Delivery.  If any of the officials of the Town who have 

signed or sealed the bonds or notes shall cease to be such officials before the bonds or 
notes signed and sealed shall have been actually authenticated or delivered by the Town, 
such bonds and notes nevertheless may be authenticated, issued, and delivered with the 
same force and effect as though the person or persons who signed or sealed such bonds or 
notes had not ceased to be such officer or official; and also any such bonds and notes may 
be signed and sealed on behalf of the Town by those persons who, at the actual date of 
the execution of such bonds and notes, shall be the proper officials of the Town, although 
at the nominal date of such bonds and notes any such person shall not have been such 
officer or official. 

 
 
 



  
 

4 

Section 5.  Sale of Bonds or Notes and Registrar, Paying Agent and Transfer Agent 
 

a. Official Statement.  The Treasurer is authorized to prepare, or cause to be prepared, a 
Preliminary Official Statement and an Official Statement for use in the offering and sale 
of the bonds or notes.  The Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement shall be 
in such form and contain such information as may be approved by the Treasurer, with the 
advice of the underwriter for the bonds or notes and bond counsel for the Town.  The 
distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement in the name 
of and on behalf of the Town in connection with offering the bonds or notes is approved. 

 
b. Counsel.  The Treasurer is authorized to select Issuer Counsel, Bond Counsel and any 

other counsel the Treasurer deems necessary in connection with the planning, sale and 
issuance of the notes or bonds, and to execute and deliver such contracts or agreements as 
may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith. 
 

c. Underwriter.  The Treasurer is authorized to select the underwriter for the bonds and 
notes, and to execute and deliver such contracts or agreements as may be necessary or 
appropriate in connection therewith. 

 
d. Registrar, Paying Agent and Transfer Agent.  The Treasurer is authorized to select the 

registrar, paying agent, and transfer agent for the bonds or notes and to execute and 
deliver such contracts and agreements as may be necessary or appropriate to secure their 
services.  The bonds and notes shall be transferable only on the registration books of the 
Town kept by the transfer agent.  Upon surrender of the bonds or notes with an 
accompanying written instrument of exchange or transfer, executed by the registered 
owner or the owner’s attorney, duly authorized in writing and satisfactory to the transfer 
agent, the Town and the transfer agent shall make a charge sufficient to cover any tax, fee 
or any other governmental charge required to be payable with respect to such exchange or 
transfer.  Subsequent to the first exchange or transfer, the cost of preparing new bonds or 
notes upon exchanges or transfer thereof shall be paid by the person requesting the same. 

 
Section 6.  Refunding.  The Treasurer and Chair of the Town Council be and hereby are 

authorized to execute a refunding of general obligation bonds and notes herein authorized when the 
Treasurer and the Chair of the Town Council determine that such refunding is in the best interest of the 
Town.  All delegated authority provided pursuant to this ordinance shall also apply to a refunding bond 
and note issue relating to the general obligation bonds and notes herein authorized. 

 
Section 7.  Continuing Disclosure.  The Treasurer and Chair of the Town Council be and hereby 

are individually authorized to covenant, certify, and agree, on behalf of the Town, for the benefit of the 
holders of such bonds and notes, that the Town will file any required reports, make any annual financial 
or material event disclosure, and take any other action that may be necessary to ensure that the disclosure 
requirements imposed by Rule 15c12-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission are met. 

 
Section 8.  Investment Earnings and Other Bond Proceeds.  Any investment earnings on the 

proceeds of the bonds and notes and any other unexpended proceeds thereof are appropriated for the 
following purposes: 

 
a. To any costs of the Project in excess of the amounts authorized herein; 



  
 

5 

b. In accordance with the applicable terms and conditions of the Town’s Arbitrage and Use 
of Proceeds Certificate delivered in connection with the sale of the bonds or notes 
including, to the extent permitted thereunder, to interest on the bonds or notes, or to the 
Town's general fund; 

c. To any other qualified costs approved by the Town Council and not prohibited by the 
Town Charter or Ordinances, Maine law or the Internal Revenue Code. 

 
Section 9.  Authority to Levy Tax for Debt Service.  In each of the years during which any of 

the bonds or notes are outstanding, there shall be levied a tax in an amount which, with other revenues, if 
any, available for that purpose, shall be sufficient to pay the interest on said bonds or notes, payable in 
such year, and the principal of such bonds maturing in such year. 

 
Section 10.  Authority to Accept Grants and Contributions.  The Town Manager is authorized 

to accept contributions and make applications for federal and state grant funds, said contributions and 
grants to be used in lieu of or in addition to bond proceeds authorized hereunder.  The Town Manager is 
authorized to accept contributions and grants on behalf of the Town and said amounts are hereby 
appropriated to fund any portion of the Project.  The total amount appropriated under this Ordinance shall 
not be greater than the amount of bond proceeds plus any contributions and grants, and plus any other 
amounts appropriated herein. 

Section 11.  Advances to Fund Project.  The Town is authorized to make advances, from the 
Town’s general fund to a capital projects fund, in an aggregate amount not to exceed $400,000, in 
anticipation of the issuance of bonds or notes, or for the purpose of financing any part of the Project.  
Advances used in lieu of bonds or notes authorized hereunder, are appropriated to finance the cost, or any 
part thereof, of the Project.  The Treasurer is authorized to establish and amend all details of any advances 
including, but not limited to the term, interest rates, and payment schedule.  The authority to issue the 
bonds and notes authorized herein shall remain and continue in full force and effect during the entire term 
of the advance(s).  The proceeds of the bonds and notes issued hereunder may be used to repay the 
advance(s) of any portion thereof. 

 
Section 12.  Declaration of Official Intent.  Advances from the Town’s general fund may 

finance the original expenditures related to the Project.  It is expected that those advances will be 
reimbursed in part or in whole by the issuance of bonds or notes authorized hereunder.  It is the intent of 
the Town Council that this Ordinance shall constitute the Town’s declaration of official intent within the 
meaning of Treasury Regulation 1.150-2.  

 
Section 13.  Abandonment of Borrowing Authority.  The Treasurer is empowered to declare 

abandoned the authority to issue any bonds or notes the Treasurer deems to be in excess of the amount 
necessary to complete the Project.  Such a declaration once made may not be reversed other than by 
ordinance. 

 
 
 
Proposed to Town Council: September 8, 2015 
Public Hearing:    
Adopted by Town Council:  
 



ASSUMPTIONS: PROJECT NO: 20                            
Amount Financed: 400,000               Total Interest: 31,200                     
Number of Years: 5                          Total Cost: 431,200                   
Interest Rate: 2.60%
Start Bond Year: 31                        

BOND FISCAL TOTAL CUMMULATIVE
YEAR YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST PAYMENTS BALANCE EQUITY

30           2015-16 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
31           2016-17 80,000.00            10,400.00            90,400.00            320,000.00          80,000.00                
32           2017-18 80,000.00            8,320.00              88,320.00            240,000.00          160,000.00              
33           2018-19 80,000.00            6,240.00              86,240.00            160,000.00          240,000.00              
34           2019-20 80,000.00            4,160.00              84,160.00            80,000.00            320,000.00              
35           2020-21 80,000.00            2,080.00              82,080.00            -                       400,000.00              
36           2021-22 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
37           2022-23 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
38           2023-24 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
39           2024-25 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
40           2025-26 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
41           2026-27 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
42           2027-28 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
43           2028-29 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
44           2029-30 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
45           2030-31 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
46           2031-32 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
47           2032-33 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
48           2033-34 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
49           2034-35 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
50           2035-36 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
51           2036-37 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
52           2037-38 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
53           2038-39 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
54           2039-40 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
55           2040-41 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
56           2041-42 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
57           2042-43 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
58           2043-44 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
59           2044-45 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           
60           2045-46 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           

TOTAL 400,000.00          31,200.00            431,200.00          

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE
Bond Amortization Schedule

Property Revaluation

O:\Finance\Capital Projects\CIP\CIP 2016\2017-21 CIP20 Page 1


	1 ca a yes
	2 ca a Sept 8, 2015 min
	3 ca b yes
	4 CA b MMA scan0026
	5 mr a yes
	6 MR A 1Town Council Rev Rpt Aug 2015
	7 MR A 2Town Council Exp Rpt Aug 2015
	8 mr b yes
	9 MR b goan scan0025
	10 mr c yes
	11 MR C KFP Trail Naming Town Council Report (Sept 2015)
	12 mr d no
	13 mr e yes
	15 mr f yes
	16 mr f tobacco
	17 94 yes
	18 94 BRUNSWICK AUTO RECYCLING_20150914094020
	19 95 Yes
	20 95 FULL Memo BHS Boiler Replacement 090215
	21 96 yes
	22 96 FULL Memo Revaluation 090215



